
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 Randy Rowse 

Mayor Pro Tempore 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss  
Cathy Murillo 
Bendy White 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

APRIL 16, 2013 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

4/16/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:00 p.m. - Special Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting Room, 
   630 Garden Street 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITT EE AND FINANCE  COMMITT EE M EE TINGS  

SPECIAL ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:00 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL 
CHAMBER (120.03) 

Subject:  Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 

Recommendation:  That Ordinance Committee consider Historic and Special Design 
District criteria options by reviewing: 
• A general proposal to amend Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) Chapter  

22.22, "Historic Structures Ordinance"; 
• A general proposal to create a new SBMC Chapter 22.67, "Historic Landmarks 

Commission." 
(Continued from April 9, 2013) 

 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  

Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of The Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan 
For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 

Recommendation:  That Finance Committee: 
A. Consider and approve the proposed Finance Committee review schedule and 

topics related to the Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 
and 2015, including the Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2014; and 

B. Provide staff any additional topics the Committee wishes to include in their 
review. 



 

4/16/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
 
AFTERNOON SES SION  

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring April 2013 DMV/Donate Life California 
Month 

 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of March 18, 2013, and the regular meetings of 
March 19 and 26, 2013. 
  

3. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Amending The Electronic Campaign 
Disclosure Filing Requirement (110.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Section 2.03.110 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code Regarding the Mandatory Electronic Campaign 
Disclosure Filing Requirement. 
  



 

4/16/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  Adoption of Ordinance For Firefighters Memorandum Of 
Understanding Extension Through June 30, 2014 (440.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Extending the 2007-2013 Memorandum 
of Understanding Between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara City 
Firefighters' Association Through June 30, 2014. 

5. Subject:  Adoption of Ordinances To Amend The Memoranda Of 
Understanding With Hourly And Treatment And Patrol TAP Bargaining 
Units (440.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only: 
A. An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 

Existing 2008-2012 Memorandum of Understanding Between the City Of 
Santa Barbara and the Hourly Employees' Bargaining Unit to Extend the 
Term Through December 31, 2013, and to Reflect New Pension 
Requirements; and 

B. An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending the 
2011-2013 Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Santa 
Barbara and the Patrol Officers' and Treatment Plants' Bargaining Units 
(TAP Units) to Include Appendix H Regarding the Transfer of Meter 
Readers to the Bargaining Unit. 

 
6. Subject:  Contract For Design For Runway 15R-33L Pavement 

Rehabilitation (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
Professional Services agreement, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, with 
Kimley-Horn and Associates in the amount of $319,524 for design services for 
the Runway 15R-33L Pavement Rehabilitation Project, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $15,976 for extra services of 
Kimley-Horn and Associates that may result from necessary changes in the 
scope of work. 

7. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance For Granting Of Easements On City 
Property At Chapala And Yanonali Streets (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the 
Granting of Easements for Public Utilities In and Under the City-Owned Property 
at Chapala and Yanonali Streets, and Authorizing the Public Works Director to 
Execute Agreements with Southern California Edison Company, Verizon 
California Inc., Cox Communications California LLC, and Crown Castle NG West 
Inc., to Grant Easements Related to the City-Owned Property at Chapala and 
Yanonali Streets. 



 

4/16/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

8. Subject:  Contract For Construction Management Services For The Punta 
Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 

Services contract with Filippin Engineering in the amount of $330,674 for 
construction management support services for the Punta Gorda Street 
Bridge Replacement Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to 
approve expenditures of up to $33,067 for extra services that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Penfield & Smith in the amount of $13,060 for 
engineering (design) support services for Lower Sycamore Creek Channel 
Widening, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $1,306 for extra services that may result from 
necessary changes in the scope of work; 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Drake Haglan and Associates in the amount of 
$50,000 for engineering (design) support services for the Punta Gorda 
Street Bridge Replacement Project, and authorize the Public Works 
Director to approve expenditures of up to $5,000 for extra services that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional 
Services contract with Cardno ENTRIX in the amount of $90,881 for 
environmental coordination and biological monitoring services for the 
Punta Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project, and authorize the Public 
Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $9,088 for extra services 
that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 

 
9. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements For The Eight 

Months Ended February 28, 2013 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial 
Statements for the Eight Months Ended February 28, 2013. 

NOTICES 

10. The City Clerk has on Thursday, April 11, 2013, posted this agenda in the Office 
of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of 
City Hall, and on the Internet. 

11. The Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, 
including the Recommended Operating and Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 2014, 
will be filed with the City Clerk's Office on April 16, 2013. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 



 

4/16/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

12. Subject:  Presentation From Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control 
District On Marine Vessel Speed Reduction Initiative (150.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation from the Santa Barbara 
County Air Pollution Control District on a marine vessel speed reduction initiative. 
  

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

13. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance To Approve An Installment Sale 
Agreement, Trust Agreement And Continuing Disclosure Agreement In 
Connection With The Potential Sale Of Water Revenue Refunding 
Certificates Of Participation (240.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Execution and Delivery by the City of 
an Installment Sale Agreement, a Trust Agreement and a Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement in Connection with the Execution and Delivery of City of Santa 
Barbara Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2013, and 
Authorizing Related Actions. 
  

14. Subject:  Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 
And 2015 (230.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive the Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 

2014 and 2015, including the Recommended Operating and Capital 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2014;  

B. Hear a report from staff in connection with the filing of the Recommended 
Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015; and 

C. Approve the proposed Schedule of Council Budget Review Meetings and 
Public Hearings of the Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal 
Years 2014 and 2015. 



 

4/16/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

15. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 2700 
Miradero Drive (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Anne Senuta regarding the 
application of the Villa Miradero North Homeowner's Association, and uphold the 
Architectural Board of Review's approval to allow the Homeowners' Association 
to remove 40 attached trellises. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

16. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Fire Management 
Association and the Police Officers' Association, and regarding discussions with 
certain unrepresented managers about salaries and fringe benefits. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 

17. Subject:  Conference with Real Property Negotiators - State Route 225 
(330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session pursuant to the authority 
of Government Code �54956.8 to provide direction to the City Administrator and 
to the City Attorney regarding the relinquishment by the State of California of a 
portion of State Route 225 to the City of Santa Barbara. 
• Real Property:  A portion of State Route 225 between Post Mile 0.031 to Post 

Mile 4.55 (Castillo Street to Cliff Drive to Las Positas Road) within the City of 
Santa Barbara. 

• City Negotiators: Public Works Director and the City Attorney 
• Negotiating Party:  CALTRANS, Deputy District Director Loe (San Luis 

Obispo District) 
• Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Transfer and Compensation 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 

RECESS 
EVENI NG SE SSION  



 

4/16/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 7 

EVENING SESSION 
 
 
RECONVENE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

18. Subject:  Request From Councilmember Francisco And Councilmember 
Rowse Regarding Alternatives To Narrowing Lower State Street (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmember 
Francisco and Councilmember Rowse regarding alternatives to the narrowing of 
Lower State Street. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: April 16, 2013 Grant House, Chair 
TIME:  12:00 p.m. Frank Hotchkiss 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Randy Rowse 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Nina Johnson                                                Stephen P. Wiley 
Assistant To City Administrator                        City Attorney 
                                                

 
ITEM FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 
Subject:  Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 
 
Recommendation:  That Ordinance Committee consider Historic and Special Design 
District criteria options by reviewing: 
 
• A general proposal to amend Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) Chapter  

22.22, “Historic Structures Ordinance”; 
• A general proposal to create a new SBMC Chapter 22.67, “Historic Landmarks 

Commission.” 
(Continued from April 9, 2013) 



 

File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 9 and 16, 2013 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Ordinance Committee consider Historic and Special Design 
District criteria options by reviewing: 
 

• A general proposal to amend Santa Barbara Municipal Code (SBMC) Chapter  
22.22, “Historic Structures Ordinance”; 

• A general proposal to create a new SBMC Chapter 22.67, “Historic Landmarks 
Commission.” 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
On October 2, 2012, the Council adopted the Historic Resources Element (HRE).  On 
February 5, 2013, the Council directed staff to implement a “Five-Year Historic 
Resources Work Program” (5-Year HRWP) and to return to the Council Ordinance 
Committee to work on the following major projects included in the 5-Year HRWP 
implementation, generally in this order: 
 

1. A possible historic and special design districts ordinance 
2. Historic districts implementation program, using existing historic survey data 
3. Possible Municipal Code zoning amendments to support historic structures 

preservation. [This topic is proposed to be discussed after Ordinance 
Committee feedback regarding the historic and special design districts 
designations has been given.]  

Staff plans to bring a series of historic districts to the Ordinance Committee and Council 
for adoption consideration, generally, one district at a time following extensive 
neighborhood outreach.  Revisions to SBMC Chapter 22.22 and a new Chapter 22.67 
are proposed to facilitate district implementation and to better organize the existing 
Municipal Code provisions.  Staff seeks Ordinance Committee specific guidance on a 
list of topics (as described in Attachments 1 and 2):  1. basic ordinance provisions, 2. 
historic district nominations, 3. historic district boundary criteria, 4. property owner 
approval process, and 5. natural disaster provisions.  Once direction is received on 
these topics, the City Attorney’s Office will draft ordinances to be brought back to the 
Ordinance Committee for its final review. 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 
April 9 & 16, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 

 

DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
 
On October 2, 2012, the Council adopted a Historic Resources Element (HRE) of the 
City’s updated General Plan.  The new HRE incorporates both the December 2011 
General Plan Historic Resources Goals, Policies and Implementation Actions, and 
replaces the Cultural and Historic Resources section of the Conservation Element.  The 
HRE includes 47 “possible implementation items to be considered” organized under ten 
policies.  On February 5, 2013, the Mayor and Council directed staff to begin to 
implement a “Five-Year Historic Resources Work Program” (5-Year HRWP) and to 
return to the Ordinance Committee to obtain direction on this implementation.  The 5-
Year HRWP includes three major projects which require Ordinance Committee 
discussion and review.  Staff’s proposal as to how to schedule discussion of these 
projects is as follows. 
 

• Historic districts implementation.  To begin Ordinance Committee review on 
April 9, Staff will provide background information regarding how individual historic 
districts proposals can be considered and approved. 

• Historic and special design districts ordinance.  The bulk of the immediate 
discussion is proposed to be regarding the new Municipal Code components 
needed to facilitate future historic districts designations.  Staff proposes two 
Ordinance Committee hearings on this topic, the first taking the majority of 
discussion time on April 9, and then a continued discussion on April 16 in order 
to allow sufficient discussion time. 

• Municipal code provisions for individual historic structures.  HRE 
implementation item 4.1 (HRE 4.1) proposes to provide incentives for the 
adaptive reuse of historic buildings.  HRE 4.1 specifies to support zoning 
modification approvals for parking and setbacks to allow more change of uses for 
historic properties and allow more flexible building code compliance alternatives.  
For example, the California State Historical Building Code could be specially 
employed to allow more flexibility in compliance with our local Municipal Code 
requirements.  This topic, although important, is proposed to be discussed at a 
later Ordinance Committee hearing sometime in the next five years, after 
Ordinance Committee feedback regarding the historic and special design districts 
designations has been given.  In addition, other City Zoning Ordinance 
amendments to further facilitate neighborhood historic preservation in 
accordance with HRE implementation item 5.5 are expected to be brought to the 
Ordinance Committee during the extended general plan implementation time-
frame. 

 
 
 
 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 
April 9 & 16, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 

 

I.  Historic Districts Implementation 
 

As reported to the Council on February 5, 2013, detailed historic property survey data is 
available for three major geographic areas of the City with the potential for historic 
districts (West Downtown, Lower Riviera and West Beach.)  The data has been the 
basis for preliminary consultant recommendations for possible historic district 
designations.  The key components for this program include the following:  
 

• survey data completion and compilation 
• mapping district proposals 
• outreach programs to neighborhoods to explain districting 
• hearings before the HLC and Council 
• ordinance amendment for each district as it is adopted  
 

The proposed general historic district ordinance amendments will allow this project to be 
completed efficiently.  Proposed historic district guidelines work will also complement 
achievement of this project. 
 
The first district proposed for adoption by Staff is the El Encanto Hotel Historic District.  
It would be adopted under the current regulations, due to its adoption requirement being 
part of a recent project approval for the new El Encanto Hotel.  
 
Among all the surveyed areas of the City awaiting districting proposals, the survey data 
for West Beach is oldest and most at risk of becoming outdated.  Therefore, West 
Beach is the first area where staff would propose a historic district be adopted under the 
new ordinance requirements.  Staff proposes that districts would be implemented 
sequentially in one area of the City at a time.  Following are potential historic district 
areas with existing survey data, which would be proposed individually after extensive 
neighborhood outreach. 
 
District to be adopted in 2013 per current regulatory framework:  El Encanto 
 
Districts with existing survey data to be proposed for adoption under new 
ordinance  
 

1. West Beach 
2. West Downtown (2 districts) 

 

3. Lower Riviera Bungalow Haven 
 

Districts which may be subsequently adopted, depending upon community 
interest and survey data to be completed 

• Diana Lane 
• East Cabrillo Boulevard 
• Plaza Bonita 

• Plaza Rubio 
• Rosemary Lane 

 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 
April 9 & 16, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Later “clean up” historic district items 

• Adopt official historic districts within the existing EPV district, while keeping the 
current EPV design district boundaries. 

• Revise Brinkerhoff Landmark District to be a historic district. 
 
Certain procedures and regulations will need to be put in place in order to ensure these 
possible district designations have a standard public review process.   
 
II.  Historic & Special Design Districts Ordinance 
 
The City also needs to adopt a process, criteria and procedures for evaluating 
proposals to form an historic district.  Staff proposes Municipal Code changes to 
achieve a simple regulatory process, as well as set criteria and procedures for the future 
designation of historic and special design districts.  An  amended Chapter 22.22, [to be 
named Historic Resources  Ordinance, combined with new administrative guidelines] is 
proposed in order to establish legal noticing procedures and steps involved with 
nomination, application, initiation, and research criteria which can lead to the 
designation of potential new districts. 
 
Existing Historic Resources Municipal Code Discussion 
 
The City’s current Historic Structures Ordinance provides authority to create lists of 
potential historic resources and a process to designate historically significant structures 
as Structures of Merit or City Landmarks.  All designated historic resources have 
existing Municipal Code provisions and findings which guide any proposal to demolish, 
alter, repair or maintain a Historic Structure.  Staff is aware of many cities that have 
ordinances that outline how historic district nominations and designations are 
processed.  Currently, the City of Santa Barbara does not have a comprehensive district 
ordinance and must initiate special ordinance amendments each time an historic district 
is formed. That special ordinance process was followed in 2004 when the Riviera 
Campus Historic District was created, and will need to be followed to adopt the pending 
proposed El Encanto Hotel Historic District.   
 
During recent discussions as part of the Historic Resources Element (HRE) Update 
process, implementation strategies were further developed by the HRE Task Force that 
recommended the City simplify the Municipal Code in order to make it easier for the 
public to understand.  For example, in 2004, extensive amendments were made to the 
Historic Structures Ordinance Chapter to establish the Demolition Review Study Area 
which lengthened and further complicated the existing ordinance.  Staff is 
recommending that the Ordinance Committee consider revisions to the Municipal Code 
to better organize the regulations into two distinct chapters resulting in clearer 
regulations. 
 
 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 
April 9 & 16, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 

 

Current Historic and Landmark Districts 
 
The City began identification of historic areas with the use of the Landmark District 
beginning in the 1970’s for areas with a high concentration of historic structures.  
Chapter 22.22 has regulations for two Landmark Districts, specifically El Pueblo Viejo 
(EPV) and Brinkerhoff Avenue.   
 
The EPV Landmark District has been expanded over time and is now more of a 
combination of an architectural special design district and a historic landmark district.   
The EPV Landmark District primarily focuses on required architectural styles and 
appearance rather than specific historic resource locations, although there is some 
overlap when considering these topics.  Since SBMC Chapter 22.22 is proposed to 
have a focus on historic districts, it is proposed to move the HLC design review 
ordinance language and EPV ordinance structure into a new Municipal Code Chapter. 
 
The Brinkerhoff Avenue Landmark District was the city’s first authentic historic district in 
that all properties within the District were identified as “contributing properties.”  The 
“Landmark District” designation is misleading since all the structures within the area are 
Structures of Merit not Landmarks. Staff recommends that the Brinkerhoff Avenue 
Landmark District title be revised to a “historic district” in order to better reflect how the 
area should be evaluated.  In addition, Staff recommends that formal design guidelines 
for the historic district be adopted.  In anticipation of the future need to refer to “historic 
districts” rather than “landmark districts,” a new definition of “historic districts” was 
already added to the City’s Historic Structures Ordinance in 2007.  The Brinkerhoff 
Historic District would remain in Chapter 22.22 since it is essentially a “historic district.” 
 
Discussion Item 1:  General Historic Resources Municipal Code Approaches.  
Ordinance Committee confirmation that the five general approaches detailed in 
Attachment 1 are acceptable is needed so that the City Attorney’s Office can begin drafting 
the required ordinances.  The Ordinance Committee would then review specific proposed 
ordinance text at a future meeting. 
 
Discussion Item 2:  Historic District Formation Procedure Options for 
Consideration.  Attachment 2 lists specific discussion questions regarding the following 
four topics, followed by applicable background information and staff recommendations.  
A chart compares how other jurisdictions approach items 1 – 3 in Attachment 2. 

 

1. Who may initiate potential historic district designations. 
2. Criteria to determine district boundaries. 

3. Whether property owner approval is advisable or needed. 
4. Natural disaster provisions. 

 
 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Historic Resources Ordinance Amendments 
April 9 & 16, 2013 
Page 6 
 
 

 

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:   
 
On February 5, 2013, in consideration of the 5-Year Historic Resources Work Program, 
the Mayor and Council supported approximately $30,000 of funding for the Program for 
scanning and uploading information to websites, guidelines printing, and obtaining, 
reviewing and mapping data.  The funding approval will be considered when Council 
acts on the two-year financial plan for fiscal years 2014 and 2015 and associated 
budget for the Community Development Department.   
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

1. Discussion Item 1:  General Historic Resources Municipal Code Approaches 
2. Discussion Item 2:  Historic District Formation Procedure Options for 

Consideration and Comparison Table:  Other Jurisdictions’ Historic District 
Regulations 

3. National Register Guidance on Historic District Designations 
 
NOTE:  The documents listed below have been separately delivered to the City Council 
and are available for public review in the Mayor and Council Office and City Clerk’s 
Office.  
 

1. Historic Resources Element, adopted 10/2/12.  The Historic Resource Element is 
also available on-line at:  www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/General_Plan/index.htm 

2. 5-Year Historic Resources Element Work Program Council Agenda Report, 
2/5/13 

3. City of Santa Barbara Master Environmental Assessment criteria for historic 
significance 

4. Historic district ordinance examples from other jurisdictions 
 
PREPARED BY: Jaime Limon, Senior Planner II 
 Heather Baker, AICP Project Planner 
 Nicole Hernandez, Urban Historian 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator / Community 

Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/General_Plan/index.htm


File Code 120.03 
 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

DATE: April 16, 2013 Dale Francisco, Chair 
TIME: 12:30 P.M.  Bendy White  
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Cathy Murillo 
 630 Garden Street  
 
James L. Armstrong  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Finance Director 

 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of The Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan For 
Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 
 
Recommendation: That the Finance Committee: 
A. Consider and approve the proposed Finance Committee review schedule and topics 

related to the Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015, 
including the Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2014; and 

B. Provide staff any additional topics the Committee wishes to include in their review. 
 

 
 
 



 

File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Finance Committee  
 
FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Finance Committee Review Of The Proposed Two-Year Financial 

Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 And 2015 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Finance Committee: 
 

A. Consider and approve the proposed Finance Committee review schedule and 
topics related to the Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 
2015, including the Recommended Budget for Fiscal Year 2014; and 

 
B. Provide staff any additional topics the Committee wishes to include in their review. 

 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In accordance with City Charter, the Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 
2015, including the Recommended Budget for the first year of the plan, is being filed with 
the City Clerk’s Office on Tuesday, April 16, 2013 and is being presented to Council on 
this same day. 
 
City staff has scheduled special City Council budget work sessions over the next two 
months during which the details of the recommended budget will be presented and 
discussed. Over the course of the special meetings, each department will present their 
respective budgets to City Council, with the focus being on the budget adjustments 
required to respond to the overall impacts on all funds, in particular the General Fund.  
 
In addition to the review by Council, staff recommends that the Finance Committee review 
certain topics related to the recommended budget in more detail. These elements include 
General Fund revenue assumptions and projections, General Fund reserves and citywide 
fees. Staff will also be requesting the Committee for any other topics or areas of the 
budget they wish to review. 
 
The proposed Finance Committee review schedule is included as an attachment to this 
report.  
 



 
Finance Committee Agenda Report 
Finance Committee Review Of The Proposed Two-Year Financial Plan For Fiscal Years 
2014 And 2015 
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENT: Proposed Finance Committee Review Schedule  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 
 



Attachment  

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
Proposed Finance Committee Review Schedule 

Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 
 
 
Meeting Date and Time Department 
 
Tuesday, April 16, 2013 
12:30 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Proposed Finance Committee Budget Review 

Schedule 

 
Tuesday, April 30, 2013 
12:30 a.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 General Fund non-departmental revenues  and 

assumptions  
 General Fund Multi-Year Forecast (updated) 

 
Tuesday, May 7, 2013 
12:00 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 General Fund departmental proposed fee changes 

- Community Development, Public Works, Parks & 
Recreation, Police, Fire and Library  

 
 
Tuesday, May 14, 2013 
11:00 a.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Enterprise fund proposed fee changes  

- Water, Wastewater, Waterfront, Solid Waste, 
Downtown Parking, Golf and Airport 

 
Tuesday, May 21, 2013 
12:30 p.m. – 1:45 p.m. 
 

 
 Review of Citywide reserve balances 
 Follow-up on items requested by Finance Committee 
 Staff recommended adjustments, if any 
 Finance Committee decisions/ recommendations 

 
 



‘d

_Jv_-

PROCLAW4 TION
DM1/Donate Life California Month

lprsl 2033

WULRLl.,iga,s. ss.rrn asdbs,,d j,ario are Iit—giving acts
‘cc.1g?c_.M [.)HJLaa. )1Is’e to hoss ,reed: ad

aFtER LA .S..mj.:o / V. a l.:dcsL( II’) redj _Vtd more that,
i, CIiI]eHta a carn’J ,sa:k!.c,;l organ £r ,up/ant waiting

and .i•n• _San j:•j wh,k n(aotg ,is ta the shartage

.}rjjs.,;

• IILrRLtS the wJ>n ‘.taw re: aT

.h,:IraaT ..crt—ap

WHERF-S. ,)).l,]:): .i, per;oe, aro .,.o,iod to .,se.jr

,

WIFRE4.. •.a u:!_.!::r..::J... T:;r.CJ

a.ntrz_o fl:.r ur-u Pc.. -r -

agaT- .a :s::r J.. aYC ::.r_r. ri,-a—:
.:.aTn4 .Je

TJItERLIS. crr h,-,
.:&;T.:. .5rSa:::e .r.. L’zna—.-—

.rj C 5C .

t.c:n rr_

VOW THFRFF’)RE. I. 7ILLL%L SCIflEIDER. rr .fy
qrrtrr..;—_xRr

_: r .3 Dl I DOX I FE LIFE CIUFORYLi
.1f0’1)f a, /, _. rd .rge .s CU:’eo;:’c—.

-—

‘-:.

IV WI nESS HEREOF er;nnrc er .

Sea, creeirg S>n; ikrc,

anu. ob_e3ri

HETVNF CHNFIOER
Mayor



3/18/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

APR 16 2013 #2 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 
March 18, 2013 

1911 CHINO STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 1:45 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Paul 
Casey, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley. 
 
NOTICES 
 
The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 14, 2013, posted this agenda in the Office of the 
City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, and 
on the Internet. 
 
SITE VISIT 
 
Subject:  1911 Chino Street 
 
Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 1911 Chino 
Street, which is the subject of an appeal hearing scheduled for March 19, 2013, at 
6:00 p.m. 
 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Planning Technician Tony Boughman. 
 

Discussion: 
Staff provided an overview of the site and the proposed project, and led the 
Council on a tour of the property.  Councilmembers’ questions were answered. 

  



3/18/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 2:00 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

APR 16 2013 #2 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 19, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m.  (The Finance 
Committee met at 12:30 p.m.  The Ordinance Committee, which ordinarily meets at 
12:30 p.m., did not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
Item Removed from Agenda 
 
City Administrator Armstrong stated that the following item was being removed from the 
Agenda: 
 
13. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Fire Management 
Association and the Police Officers’ Association, and regarding discussions with 
certain unrepresented managers about salaries and fringe benefits. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Frank Dupont, Miguel Albarran, Daniel Ramirez, Patricia Hiles, Marissa 
Barragan, Reverend Arthur Stevens, Kenneth Loch, Geof Bard. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 – 10) 
 
The titles of the ordinance and resolutions related to Consent Calendar items were 
read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Murillo/White to approve the Consent Calendar, amended to 
remove recommendation B from Item No. 9. 

Vote: 
Unanimous roll call vote. 
 

1. Subject:  Minutes 
 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the regular meetings of March 5 and 12, 2013. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 
 

2. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Lease Agreement With U.S. 
Department Of Transportation, Federal Aviation Administration (330.04) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Twenty-Year Lease 
Agreement with the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation 
Administration, with No Monetary Consideration, for Approximately 2.5 Acres of 
Land at 10 Edward Burns Place, at the Santa Barbara Municipal Airport, Effective 
October 1, 2013. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5610; Agreement 
No. 24,399. 

 
3. Subject:  Records Destruction For Administrative Services Department 

(160.06) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Administrative Services Department in the City Clerk's Office, Human 
Resources Division, and Information Systems Division. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 13-012 (March 19, 2013, 
report from the Assistant City Administrator/Administrative Services Director; 
proposed resolution). 

  



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

4. Subject:  Records Destruction For Public Works Department (160.06) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Relating to the Destruction of Records 
Held by the Public Works Department in the Engineering and Water Resources 
Divisions. 

  
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 13-013 (March 19, 2013, 
report from the Public Works Director; proposed resolution). 

 
5. Subject:  Acquisition Of Temporary Easements And Extra Design Services 

For The Punta Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project (330.03) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara to Acquire and Accept Temporary Construction Easements 
Located at 1130 and 1133 Punta Gorda Street, and Authorize the Public 
Works Director, Subject to Review and Approval as to Form by the City 
Attorney, to Execute Said Agreements and Related Acquisition 
Documents that May be Required for the Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project, and Consent to the Recordation of the Related 
Deeds in the Official Records, County of Santa Barbara; and 

B. Authorize an increase in the extra services amount with Drake Haglan and 
Associates for final design services for the Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project, Contract No. 23,959, in the amount of $34,000, for a 
total project expenditure authority of $166,000. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Resolution No. 13-014; Agreement 
Nos. 24,400 and 24,401 (March 19, 2013, report from the Public Works Director; 
proposed resolution). 

 
6. Subject:  Lease Agreement With Special Olympics of Southern California, 

Inc., At Westside Neighborhood Center (330.04) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Director to 
execute a lease agreement with Special Olympics of Southern California, Inc., for 
922 square feet of space at the Westside Neighborhood Center at $1.17 per 
square foot. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 24,402 (March 19, 2013, 
report from the Parks and Recreation Director). 

  
  



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

7. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of Low Impact Development 
Demonstration Permeable Paver Parking Lots Project (570.05) 
 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept a Proposition 84 Storm Water Grant funds for an amount not to 

exceed $1,889,299 for the Low Impact Development Demonstration 
Permeable Paver Parking Lots Project; 

B. Approve a transfer of reserves in the amount of $259,890 from the Creeks 
Operating Fund to the Creeks Capital Fund; 

C. Authorize the increase of estimated revenues and appropriations in the 
Fiscal Year 2013 Creeks Capital Fund by $2,149,189, for the Low Impact 
Development Demonstration Permeable Paver Parking Lots Project 
funded from the $1,889,299 grant and $259,890 transfer of reserves from 
the Creeks Operating Fund; 

D. Reject the apparent low bid from Moalej Builders, Inc., of $1,681,373 for 
the Low Impact Development Demonstration Permeable Paver Parking 
Lots Project, Bid No. 3677, as nonresponsive due to their failure to submit 
a complete bid; 

E. Award a contract with G. Sosa Construction, Inc., waiving minor 
irregularities, in their low bid amount of $1,716,930 for construction of the 
Low Impact Development Demonstration Permeable Paver Parking Lots 
Project, Bid No. 3677; and 

F. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute the contract and approve 
expenditures up to $171,700 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 

 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Creeks Restoration/Water Quality Improvement Manager Cameron 
Benson. 
 

Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 24,403 (March 19, 2013, 
joint report from the Public Works and Parks and Recreation Directors). 

 
8. Subject:  Approval Of Emergency Repair Of The Rattlesnake Creek Sewer 

Pipe Bridge Creek Crossing (540.13) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve an emergency Purchase Order for Specialty Construction, Inc., in 

the amount of $74,867.11 for repair of the Rattlesnake Creek Sewer Pipe 
Bridge Creek Crossing; and 

B. Approve an emergency increase in a professional services contract with 
Fillippin Engineering in the amount of $66,216.38 for construction 
management, inspection and environmental monitoring. 

 
(Cont’d) 



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

8. (Cont’d) 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (March 19, 2013, report from the Public 
Works Director). 

 
9. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of Architectural 

Board Of Review Approval For 2700 Miradero Drive (640.07) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of April 16, 2013, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed by 

Anne Senuta of the Architectural Board of Review approval of an 
application for property owned by the Villa Miradero North Homeowners 
Association and located at 2700 Miradero Drive, Assessor's Area Parcel 
No. 051-520-CA1 for common parcel, R-2 Two-Family Residence Zone, 
General Plan Designation: Medium Density Residential. The project 
proposes to remove existing attached gable pergolas at 40 residential 
condominium units; and 

B. Set the date of April 15, 2013, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the property 
located at 2700 Miradero Drive. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (February 22, 2013, letter of appeal). 
 

NOTICES 
 
10. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 14, 2013, posted this agenda in the 

Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Finance Committee Chair Dale Francisco reported that the Committee met to consider a 
request from the Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara for the subordination, 
modification, and release of City Deeds of Trust on properties located at 418 Santa Fe 
Place and 521 N. La Cumbre Road.  The Committee approved Staff recommendations 
related to the request, which will be submitted to the full Council next week. 
 
  



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
11. Subject:  Purchase Of Real Property At The City's Hydroelectric Plant 

(330.03) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the City's Public Works 
Director to Act in the Negotiations on Behalf of the City of Santa Barbara for the 
Purchase of the Fee Simple Interest in the Real Property Known as the Santa 
Barbara Hydroelectric Power Plant Land at Lauro Dam, and Verifying that Funds 
Have Been Budgeted for the Purchase at Fair Market Value as Determined by 
Appraisal. 

 
Documents: 

- March 19, 2013, report from the Public Works Director. 
- Proposed resolution. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
The title of the resolution was read. 
 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Water Resources Manager Rebecca Bjork, Project Manager Robert 
Roebuck. 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers House/Francisco to approve the recommendation; 
Resolution No. 13-015. 

Vote: 
  Unanimous roll call vote. 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
12. Subject:  Police Department Update (520.04) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council receive an oral presentation from the Police 
Chief regarding the Santa Barbara Police Department. 

 
Documents: 

- March 19, 2013, report from the Chief of Police. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
(Cont’d) 

  



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

12. (Cont’d) 
 

Speakers: 
- Staff:  Police Chief Camerino Sanchez, Police Sergeant Jill Beecher, 

Police Captain David Whitham, Police Sergeant Ed Olsen, Police 
Sergeant Riley Harwood, City Attorney Stephen Wiley. 

- Police Activities League:  Executive Director Laurie Parker. 
- Members of the Public:  Julio Ricon Delgado, Patricia Hiles, Robert Burke. 

 
Discussion: 

Police Chief Sanchez and department staff presented information 
regarding the current status of various law enforcement issues and 
programs such as burglaries, response to complaints received about the 
nightlife corridor, school safety, trends in Part 1 and 2 crimes, calls for 
service, Restorative Policing, and the Police Activities League.  
Councilmembers’ questions were answered. 

 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember Rowse reported that the Downtown Parking Committee had 

received a report regarding the use of the new electric vehicle charging stations. 
 - Councilmember Murillo reported that the Milpas Action Task Force is planning a 

large community forum for both residents and businesses located near the Casa 
Esperanza Homeless Shelter; she also mentioned that the Neighborhood 
Advisory Council has established an eastside subcommittee. 

 - Mayor Schneider commented on celebrations held to mark the Riviera 
neighborhood’s centennial and the reopening of the El Encanto Hotel. 

 
RECESS 
 
4:34 p.m. – 6:01 p.m. 
Mayor Schneider presiding. 
Councilmembers present:  Francisco, Hotchkiss, House, Murillo, Rowse, White, Mayor 
Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Armstrong, City Attorney Wiley, Deputy City Clerk 
Tschech. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
  



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
14. Subject:  Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 1911 Chino 

Street (640.07) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Evelyn Lee, et al., of the 
application of Gil Barry, architect, agent for Alamar II LLC, and uphold the 
Architectural Board of Review's Project Design Approval for the proposed second 
single-family dwelling and garage on a lot with an existing single-family dwelling. 

 
Documents: 

- March 19, 2013, report from the Senior Planner. 
- PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
- March 19, 2013, letter from Celeste Barber. 
- March 19, 2013, e-mails from Anne Szymanski, Howard Wittausch. 

 
 Public Comment Opened: 
  6:02 p.m. 
 
 Speakers: 

- Staff:  Planning Technician Tony Boughman, City Attorney Stephen Wiley, 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Paul 
Casey, City Administrator James Armstrong. 

- Architectural Board of Review:  Vice Chair Kirk Gradin, Member Gary 
Mosel. 

- Appellant:  Evelyn Lee, Brian Wingate, Patrick Burns. 
- Applicant:  Architect Gil Barry, Property Owner Dario Pini, Ken Sterling. 

 
Recess:  8:17 p.m. – 8:29 p.m. 
 

Speakers (Cont’d) 
- Members of the Public:  Reverend Kenneth Collier, Marti Furman, Johan 

DelSol, Ryan Romero, Louis Truckenmiller, Susan Lafond. 
 

Public Comment Closed: 
  8:54 p.m. 
 
(Cont’d) 

  



 

3/19/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

14. (Cont’d) 
 

Motion: 
Councilmembers House/Francisco to: 
1. Uphold the appeal and direct the Applicant to return to the Architectural 

Board of Review with a revised project which incorporates: 
• The list of project changes submitted by Brian Wingate, 

Items 1 - 11; 
• Removal of one bathroom from the second floor; 
• Revisions to ensure that the top of the garage will not be used as a 

roof deck. 
When reviewing the new project, the ABR is requested to study the 
possible reduction of square footage from the new building, as well as 
the reduction of the first floor full bathroom to a ½ bath. 

2. Impose the following conditions on the property as a whole: 
• No future additions are to be made to the existing front structure; 
• If a parking permit program is established for the neighborhood at 

some time in the future, this property may not participate. 
3. Require the resolution of the open master enforcement case against 

the Applicant before a building permit is issued for this project. 
Vote: 

Unanimous voice vote. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 9:41 p.m. in memory of Lily Rossi, who 
served as the City’s Chief Deputy City Clerk from 1983 – 1998. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  
 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 

APR 16 2013 #2 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 26, 2013 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Helene Schneider called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.  (The Ordinance 
Committee and the Finance Committee, which ordinarily meet at 12:30 p.m., did not 
meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Mayor Schneider. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Dale Francisco, Frank Hotchkiss, Grant House, Cathy 
Murillo, Randy Rowse, Bendy White, Mayor Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Deborah L. Applegate. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Speakers:  Jason Nelson. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 1 – 10) 
 
The titles of the resolution and ordinance related to Consent Calendar items were read. 
 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Francisco/House to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended. 

Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 
 
 
 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 

1. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the special meeting of March 13, 2013. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 
 

2. Subject:  February 2013 Investment Report  (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the February 2013 Investment Report. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 26, 2013, report from the Finance 
Director). 
 

3. Subject:  Authorization For The Allocation Of Transportation Development 
Act Funds (670.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Filing of a Claim With the 
Santa Barbara County Association of Governments for Allocation of $68,177 in 
Transportation Development Act Funds for Fiscal Year 2014. 

Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 13-016 (March 26, 2013, 
report from the Public Works Director; proposed resolution).   
  

4. Subject:  Acceptance Of Southern California Gas Company Funds (630.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the receipt of Southern California Gas Company funds totaling 

$26,850 through the South Coast Energy Efficiency Partnership; and 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the Facilities 

Management Fund by $26,850. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (March 26, 2013, report from the Public 
Works Director). 
 

5. Subject:  Introduction Of Ordinance Approving Prohibition Of Commercial 
Vehicles Over Seven Tons On Hermosillo Road (530.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of 
title only, An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending 
Section 10.36.031 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 26, 2013, report from the Public 
Works Director; proposed ordinance). 
  
 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 

6. Subject:  Appropriation Of Funds For The Purchase Of Equipment For 
SWAT Team (330.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept a donation from the Santa Barbara Police Foundation in the 

amount of $42,000; and 
B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues in the amount of $42,000 

in the General Fund for the purchase of SWAT equipment. 
 
Speaker:   

 Santa Barbara Police Foundation:  President Craig Chase. 
 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (March 26, 2013, report from the Chief  
of Police). 
 

7. Subject:  Recommendation For City Poet Laureate For 2013-2015 (610.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve the City Arts Advisory Committee's 
recommendation for the City Poet Laureate from April 1, 2013, to April 1, 2015. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation (March 26, 2013, report from the 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director). 

8. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Designation 
Of City Landmarks (640.06) 

Recommendation:  That Council set the date of April 9, 2013, at 2:00 p.m. for a 
public hearing to consider the proposed designation of the Veterans Memorial 
Building at 112 W. Cabrillo Boulevard (APN 033-101-013) and the Stark House 
at 1709 Overlook Lane (APN 015-192-016) as City landmarks. 
  
Action:  Approved the recommendation. 

NOTICES 

9. The City Clerk has on Thursday, March 21, 2013, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

10. Cancellation of the regular City Council meeting of April 2, 2013. 
 

This concluded the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
 

  



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 

CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

11. Subject:  Housing Authority Of The City Of Santa Barbara's Request For 
Subordination, Modification, And Release Of City Deeds Of Trust on 418 
Santa Fe Place And 521 N. La Cumbre Road  (660.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve the following: 
A. Subordination of the loan made by the former Redevelopment Agency to 

the Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara (HACSB) to assist in 
the acquisition by the HACSB of the property located at 521 N. La Cumbre 
Road (Villa La Cumbre) to a new loan insured by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and to a new HACSB loan, and 
amendment of the City's loan to extend the maturity date to coincide with 
the maturity date of the HUD-insured loan;  

B. An agreement between City and HACSB providing for annual repayment 
of the City loan to the City in the amount of $60,000 for the remaining 
extended term of the loan subject to disclosure and approval of the 
agreement by HUD; 

C. HUD Rider to Affordability Control Covenant Imposed on Real Property; 
D. Release and reconveyance of existing City Grant Agreements and 

associated Deeds of Trust on Villa La Cumbre;  
E. Release and reconveyance of existing City Grant Agreements and 

associated Deeds of Trust on SHIFCO; and 
F. Authorization to the Community Development Director to execute, subject 

to approval as to form by the City Attorney, such agreements and related 
City and HUD documents as required to facilitate the recapitalization of 
418 Santa Fe Place (SHIFCO) and 521 N. La Cumbre Road (Villa La 
Cumbre). 

 
Documents: 
 - March 26, 2013, report from the Assistant City Administrator/Community 

Development Director. 
 - PowerPoint Presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

 Staff:  Community Development Program Supervisor Deirdre Randolph, 
Community Development Program Specialist Elizabeth Stotts. 

 
Motion: 

Councilmembers Murillo/Rowse to approve the recommendations;   
Agreement No. 24,410.  

Vote: 
 Unanimous voice vote.   
 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

12. Subject:  Presentation From The Santa Barbara Conference And Visitors 
Bureau And Film Commission  (180.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a presentation from the Santa Barbara 
Conference and Visitors Bureau and Film Commission. 
 
Documents: 

 - March 26, 2013, report from the Finance Director. 
 

Speakers: 
 - Santa Barbara Conference and Visitors Bureau: President/CEO Kathy 

Janega-Dykes. 
 - Members of the Public:  Stephen Meade. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
Information: 
 - Councilmember Rowse reported on the recent meeting of the Airport 

Commission where they discussed presentation of public art.  
 - Councilmember Hotchkiss commended Mayor Schneider for her delivery of the 

State of the City Address.   
 - Mayor Schneider commended the Airport staff for achieving a LEED gold 

certification from the U.S. Green Building Council for the airline terminal project. 
 
RECESS 
 
Mayor Schneider recessed the meeting at 3:15 p.m. in order for the Council to 
reconvene in closed session for Agenda Item No. 13, and she stated that no reportable 
action is anticipated. 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 
 
13. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

 
Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Fire Management 
Association and the Police Officers' Association, and regarding discussions with 
certain unrepresented managers about salaries and fringe benefits. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

  
Documents:   
 March 26, 2013, report from the Assistant City Administrator. 

  (Cont’d) 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

13. (Cont’d) 
 

Time: 
 3:15 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
 
No report made. 

 
RECESS 
 
4:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m. 
Mayor Schneider presiding. 
Councilmembers present:  Francisco, Hotchkiss, House, Murillo, Rowse, White, Mayor 
Schneider. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator Armstrong, City Attorney Knecht, Deputy City Clerk 
Applegate. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

14. Subject:  Community Development And Human Services Committee 
Recommendations For Fiscal Year 2014 And Annual Action Plan (610.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the Fiscal Year 2014 funding recommendations of the 

Community Development and Human Services Committee (CDHSC) for 
use of Human Services and Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds;  

B. Approve the CDHSC funding contingency plan; 
C. Authorize the Community Development Director to negotiate and execute 

agreements implementing the funding recommendations, subject to the 
review and approval as to form by the City Attorney and to funding 
availability; and 

D. Authorize the City Administrator to sign all necessary documents to submit 
the City's 2013-2014 Annual Action Plan to the US Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD). 

 
Documents: 

 - March 26, 2013, report from the Assistant City Administrator/Community 
Development Director. 

 - Report on Funding Recommendations Fiscal Year 2013-2014 [Community 
Development and Human Services Committee]. 

(Cont’d) 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 

14. (Cont’d) 
 

Documents (Cont’d): 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 

 
Speakers: 

 - Staff:  Community Development Program Supervisor Deirdre Randolph, 
Community Development Program Specialist Elizabeth Stotts. 

 - Members of the Public:  Eryn Eckert, Children’s Center;  Carolyn Brown, 
Boys and Girls Club of Santa Barbara; Elizabeth Rumeut, CALM; Rochelle 
Rose, People’s Self-Help Housing; Heidi Holly, Friendship Center; Leah 
Gonzales, Women’s Economic Ventures; Divana Dobberteen, Planned 
Parenthood; Elsa Granados, Santa Barbara Rape Crisis Center; Dr. Gary 
Linker, Center for Successful Aging; David Selberg, Pacific Pride.   

 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers White/Hotchkiss to approve the recommendations; 

Agreement Nos. 24,411-24,466. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous voice vote.   
 
Based on the recommendations, the Council approved allocation of funding as 
follows: 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ANDHUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 

FUNDING AGREEMENTS 
 
PUBLIC/HUMAN SERVICE AMOUNT AGREEMENT NO. 

  (if applicable) 
1st Priority         
Pacific Pride Foundation (Necessities of Life Food Pantry)  $23,000  24,411 
SB Neighborhood Clinics (Dental Care for the Homeless)  $24,000  24,412 
Sarah House (Sarah House)      $19,000  24,413 
SB Rape Crisis Center (SB Rape Crisis Center)   $27,500  24,414 
Youth and Family YMCA (Noah’s Anchorage Youth Shelter) $15,000  24,415  
Foodbank (Warehouse Operations)     $24,600  24,416 
Transition House (Comp. Homeless Services)   $41,000  24,417 
Unitarian Society (Freedom Warming Centers)   $9,500   24,418 
WillBridge (WillBridge of Santa Barbara, Inc.)   $21,000  24,419 
Casa Esperanza (Day Care & Shelter)    $49,000  24,420 
CAC (Healthy Senior Lunch)      $8,000   24,421 
Youth and Family YMCA (Transitional-Age Youth Housing)  $14,000  24,422 
SBC District Attorney (Sexual Assault Response Team)  $8,500   24,423 
Casa Esperanza (Community Kitchen)    $40,500  24,424 
Foodbank (Brown Bag for Seniors)     $7,000   24,425 

 
(Cont’d) 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 

14.  (Cont’d) 
 
PUBLIC/HUMAN SERVICE AMOUNT AGREEMENT NO. 
 (if applicable) 
1st Priority (Cont’d) 
Legal Aid Foundation (Emergency Legal Services)   $28,500  24,426 
SBCHC (Riviera Life Skills/Housing Coordinator)   $14,500  24,427 
CADA (Project Recovery Detox Program)    $16,000  24,428 
Casa Esperanza (Jail Discharge Program)    $12,000  24,429 
Carrillo Counseling Services (RV Safe Park/Homeless Outreach) $13,000  24,430 
People’s Self-Help Housing (Housing the Homeless)  $5,000   24,431 
SBCHC (New Faulding Life Skills)     $12,000  24,432 
Domestic Violence Solutions (Emergency Shelter)   $8,453   24,433 
Domestic Violence Solutions (Emergency Shelter)   $23,547  24,466 
Domestic Violence Solutions (Second Stage)   $6,000   24,434 
St. Vincent’s (Family Strengthening Program)   $8,000   24,435 
Surgical Eye Expeditions (SB Vision Care Program)   $9,000   24,436 
City of Santa Barbara Parks and Recreation (SB Arts Alliance) $5,000   24,437 
Teddy Bear Cancer Found. (Asst. Families w/ Pediatric Cancer) $7,000   24,438 
Planned Parenthood (Assistance Fund - Health Center)  $7,000   24,439 
Casa Serena, Inc. (Scholarship Program)    $7,000   24,440 
City of SB Parks and Recreation (Job Apprenticeship Program) $10,000  24,441 
 
2nd Priority 
Storyteller Children’s Center (Storyteller Children’s Center)  $23,500  24,442 
CC Commission for Seniors (Ombudsman)    $15,000  24,443 
CALM (Prevention, Intervention, & Treatment)   $20,000  24,444 
Rental Housing Mediation (Rental Housing Mediation Task) $23,000  24,445 
Academy of Healing Arts (Social-Emotional Learning)  $11,000  24,446 
Transition House (Homeless Prevention Program)   $8,500   24,447 
Boys & Girls Club of SB (Power Hour Homework)   $15,000  24,448 
Family Service Agency (Big Brothers Big Sisters)   $7,500   24,449 
Family Service Agency (Santa Barbara Family Resource Centers) $5,500   24,450 
Friendship Adult Day Center (Adult Day Services Program)  $15,500  24,451 
Future Leaders of America (Excellence in Academics…)  $9,500   24,452 
Family Service Agency (Caregiver Mental Health and Support) $2,000   24,453 
Mental Health Association (Recovery Learning Center (RLC)) $9,000   24,454 
Independent Living Center (Independent Living (IL) Services) $13,500  24,455 
SB Police Activities League (PAL Jr. High After-School Program) $17,000  24,456 
United Way (Fun in the Sun (FITS))     $7,609   24,457 
SUBTOTAL               $726,709 
 
Capital 
Boys and Girls Club of SB (Roof)     $90,000  24,458 
City of Santa Barbara (Bus Shelters)     $59,000  24,459 
Girls Incorporated (Program Center Room Remodel)  $29,000  24,460 
City of Santa Barbara (Access Ramp)    $102,000  24,461 
Transition House (Emergency Shelter Rehab)   $110,000  24,462 
City of Santa Barbara (Franklin Center Improvements)  $15,000  24,463 
 

(Cont’d) 



3/26/2013 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 9 

14. (Cont’d) 
 
PUBLIC/HUMAN SERVICE AMOUNT AGREEMENT NO. 
 (if applicable) 
Jewish Federation (Client Confidentiality/Safety)   $24,914  24,464 
Women’s Economic Center (Self Employment Training)  $20,000  24,465 
SUBTOTAL                 $449,914   
 
GRAND TOTAL                $1,176,623 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Schneider adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
HELENE SCHNEIDER  DEBORAH L. APPLEGATE 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK  



1 
APR 16 2013 #3 

110.03 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING SECTION 2.03.110 OF THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE 
MANDATORY ELECTRONIC CAMPAIGN DISCLOSURE 
FILING REQUIREMENT 

 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 2.03.110 of Chapter 2.03 of Title 3 of the Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code is amended to read as follows:  
 
2.03.110 Online Electronic Disclosure of Campaign Statements and Late 
Contributions and Expenditures.  
 
A. Online Reporting of Campaign Statements. Each Candidate and Committee that 

has received contributions or made expenditures of $5,000 or more in connection 
with a City election shall use the electronic filing and disclosure system established 
by the City Clerk’s Office in order to file online copies of each campaign disclosure 
statement required by section 2.03.090 on the date such reports are due in 
accordance with the state Political Reform Act and, as to the additional local filing, 
by the local filing date. Once a Candidate or Committee is required to file campaign 
disclosure statements online, that Candidate or Committee shall continue to file 
statements online until the Committee has officially terminated in accordance with 
this Chapter.  

 
Online filings shall be made in accordance with requirements (in the manner 
established) of regulations adopted by the City Clerk for the City’s electronic 
campaign disclosure filing system created and maintained by the City Clerk for these 
purposes.  

 
B. Voluntary Online Reporting. Any Candidate or Committee not required to file online 

pursuant to section (A) hereof may do so voluntarily.  
 
SECTION 2.  Following the effective date of this Ordinance, the City Clerk is hereby 
authorized to implement and notify all persons filing reports pursuant to Chapter 2.03 of 
the revised SBMC Chapter 2.03 report filing procedures. 
 



  1 
  APR 16 2013 #4 
  440.02 

ORDINANCE NO.   
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA EXTENDING THE 2007-2013 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND THE SANTA BARBARA 
CITY FIREFIGHTERS' ASSOCIATION THROUGH 
JUNE 30, 2014 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Santa 
Barbara and the Santa Barbara City Firefighters' Association entered into as of 
July 1, 2007, adopted as Ordinance No. 5443 (the “Agreement”), and amended by 
Ordinance No 5533, is hereby amended effective January 1, 2013, as reflected in 
Exhibit A, attached hereto and included herein by reference. 



 2 

 
City of Santa Barbara and Firefighters 

Second Agreement to Extend Existing MOU 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 3.12 of the Municipal Code of the City of Santa Barbara and 
Section 3500 et. seq. of the Government Code, the duly authorized representatives 
of  the City Of Santa Barbara (“The City”) and the Santa Barbara City Firefighters 
Association, Inc. (Hereinafter Referred To As “Association”), having conferred in good 
faith, agree that the existing 2007-2013 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), 
adopted by Ordinance No.  5443 and amended by Ordinance No 5533, shall be 
modified and supplemented with the following additional agreement: 
 
1. Effective Date:  The effective date of this amendment shall be January 1, 2013. 

 
2. Term: The term of the agreement will be extended by twelve months, through 

June 30, 2014. 
 
3. Retirement: 

a. Classic PERS Members: 
1. Effective June 29, 2013, employee contributions to PERS 

under Government Code Section 20516(a) will stop as 
previously agreed, and 

2. Effective June 29, 2013, employees will instead contribute 
2.98% of PERS-able compensation toward the 9% member 
contribution, reducing the City’s Employer Paid Member 
Contributions to 6.018%, and such employee contributions 
will not be subject to an expiration date.  The City shall pay 
and report as special compensation to PERS this 6.018%. 

b. New PERS Members:  Effective January 1, 2013, new employees and/or 
members as defined by California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
of 2013 (hereinafter “AB 340”) will be covered under the 2.7% at 57 
retirement formula, with a final compensation measurement period of the 
average of the highest three (3) consecutive years, as well as all other 
statutory requirements of AB 340.  Effective January 1, 2013, new 
employees and/or members as defined by AB 340 shall contribute half the 
normal cost for benefits, as defined by AB 340; the City will not pay any 
portion of these employees’ required contributions.   

c. The parties agree that any provisions of this Agreement that are contrary 
to or inconsistent with the lawful provisions of AB 340, shall be modified so 
as to cause them to be consistent with those lawful provisions through 
letter of understanding to amend the Agreement. 

 

EXHIBIT A 



 3 

4. The Minimum Staffing agreement is amended as follows: “Minimum Staffing:  
Subject to the requirements of Article X, Section 1008 of the City Charter, the 
City agrees to maintain the following minimum staffing levels: 

a. The minimum staffing requirements of the Department shall be as follows: 
i. For suppression, 28 sworn fire suppression personnel per shift 

within the City, not including sworn management, consisting of 7 
engine companies, 1 AARF company, and 1 truck company. Staff 
on mutual aid of a duration of 12 hours or less will be included in 
this number, in which case back filling shall be at the discretion of 
the Fire Chief.  Each engine company shall be comprised of one 
Fire Captain, one Fire Engineer and one Firefighter.  The AARF 
Company at the Airport shall be comprised of one Fire Captain and 
two Fire Engineers.  The truck company shall be staffed with one 
Fire Captain, one Fire Engineer, and two Firefighters.  

ii. For the Prevention Bureau there shall be a minimum of 6 
authorized positions on the official list of authorized positions. The 
City Council may direct that these positions, if vacated by the 
incumbent employee for reasons other than an involuntary 
termination, remain unfunded and unfilled without violating this 
section.   

iii. There shall also remain a Training Captain position on the official 
list of authorized positions.  The City Council may direct that this 
position, if vacated by the incumbent employee for reasons other 
than an involuntary termination,  remain unfunded and unfilled 
without violating this section, however it is the intent of this section 
for the Training Captain position remain funded and filled if fiscal 
conditions permit.   

b. If the City Council exercises its rights under Article X, Section 1008 of the 
City Charter, or otherwise discontinues the minimum staffing levels in 
Section 3(a) above without the express written consent of the 
Association: 

i. The City will give the Association a minimum of 60 days written 
notice prior to the effective date of the change to minimum staffing 
(the “change date”),  and 

ii. The City will prospectively reduce the required employee member 
contribution toward PERS by 2.982%, increasing Employer Paid 
Member Contributions accordingly, and 

iii. In the event the Association believes that such intended action will 
affect the safety or workload of affected employees, it shall so 
advise the City, whereupon the City and the Association shall meet 
and confer in good faith over the impacts of the change,  

1. Such meeting and conferring, however, shall not prevent the 
City from implementing the staffing change on an interim 
basis not less than 60 days after notice to the Association, 
but prior to the conclusion of negotiations over the impacts of 
the change.” 



 4 

5. Other Terms and Conditions: All other terms and conditions reflected in the 
existing Memorandum of Understanding, as amended, will continue in full force 
and effect during the extended term of the agreement.  

  
 
For the City: For the Association: 
  
  
_______________________  _______________________ 
Kristine Schmidt    Anthony Pighetti, Fire Captain  
Employee Relations Manager  Association President 
 
 



  

 1 APR 16 2013 #5 
 440.02 

ORDINANCE NO.  ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE EXISTING 2008-2012 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND THE HOURLY 
EMPLOYEES’ BARGAINING UNIT TO EXTEND THE TERM 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2013, AND TO REFLECT NEW 
PENSION REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The term of the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Santa 
Barbara and the Service Employees' International Union, Local 620, Hourly Employees’ 
Bargaining Unit, entered into as of November 1, 2008 and adopted under Ordinance No. 
5483, and amended by Ordinance No. 5579, is hereby extended to December 31, 2013. 
 
SECTION 2.  The agreement terms are amended as follows: 
 

1. Amend Article  3, “Term of Agreement” as follows: 

“3. TERM OF AGREEMENT 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 3500 et seq., the parties have met and 
conferred over wages, hours, benefits and other terms and conditions of employment.  As 
a result of agreement being reached, and subsequent ratification by the Union and 
approval by the City Council, the following terms and conditions of employment shall 
remain in effect for the period commencing November 1, 2008 and expiring 
December 31, 2013. 
 
Either party may present to the other a written proposal to reopen negotiations for a 
successor Memorandum of Understanding if done between October 31, 2013 and 
December 31, 2013.  Failure to submit such a proposal to reopen negotiations shall result 
in the continuation of the Memorandum of Understanding on the same terms and 
conditions therein for one additional year.” 
 

2. Amend Article 14 “Retirement” to add a new Section (e), as follows:   

“e. Notwithstanding the above, Effective January 1, 2013, all new employees 
and/or members, as defined by California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
of 2013 (hereinafter CPEPRA), who are enrolled in the Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) will be covered under the retirement formulas, 
compensation measurement periods, employee contribution, and all other 
statutory requirements of CPEPRA. ” 
 
 



  

 1 APR 16 2013 #5 
  440.02 

ORDINANCE NO.  _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING THE 2011-2013 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AND THE PATROL 
OFFICERS' AND TREATMENT PLANTS' BARGAINING 
UNITS (TAP UNITS) TO INCLUDE APPENDIX H 
REGARDING THE TRANSFER OF METER READERS TO 
THE BARGAINING UNIT.  

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The term of the Memorandum of Understanding between the City 
of Santa Barbara and the Service Employees' International Union, Local 620, Airport and 
Harbor Patrol Officers' and Treatment Plants' Bargaining Units, effective as of January 1, 
2013, and adopted by Ordinance No 5554, is hereby amended to include the Appendix 
(Appendix H) attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as “Exhibit A”. 
 
 



APPENDIX H 
Meter Readers 

 
 
 

1. Effective October 1 2012, employees who were formerly Meter Readers and the 
Lead Meter Reader in the General Unit will become members of the Treatment 
Plants’ Unit under the classifications “Meter Reader/Water Distribution Operator 
in Training” and “Lead Meter Reader/Water Distribution Operator in Training”.   
 

2. Salaries for these employees will be set at not less than the salaries they 
received On September 30, 2012. 

 
3. Benefits will be adjusted to the same level as other employees in the Treatment 

Plants’ Unit. 
 

4. These employees will not be subject to an unpaid furlough. 
 

5. These employees will not be eligible for the across-the-board salary increase 
effective December 28, 2013.   

 
6. These positions will continue to underfill the budgeted water distribution operator 

classifications.  Upon passing the appropriate examinations and obtaining a class 
B driver’s license, employees will be eligible for reclassification into the Water 
Distribution Operator I and/or II classifications.   
 
 



Agenda Item No.  6 
 

File Code No.  560.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Design For Runway 15R-33L Pavement Rehabilitation  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a Professional Services 
agreement, in a form of agreement acceptable to the City Attorney, with Kimley-Horn 
and Associates in the amount of $319,524 for design services for the Runway 15R-33L 
Pavement Rehabilitation Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $15,976 for extra services of Kimley-Horn and Associates that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of preparation of plans and specifications for the rehabilitation of 
Runway 15R-33L at the Airport. The runway is one of two parallel runways that run 
north-south intersecting the Airport’s main runway.  Runway 15R-33L is 4,143 feet long 
by 100 feet wide and is used primarily by small general aviation aircraft.  The asphalt 
concrete runway pavement has not had any major maintenance work in ten years and 
needs to be rehabilitated.  It is expected that the rehabilitation work will generally 
consist of cold milling the existing deteriorated surface and then placing a 2-3 inch layer 
of new asphalt concrete. 
 
The consultant will make a detailed survey of the runway area; perform a detailed 
geotechnical study of the runway pavement and underlying soils; and prepare plans and 
specifications for construction of the work.  The consultant will also prepare studies and 
reports which are required by the Federal Aviation Administration, which is funding most 
of the project.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Design For Runway 15R-33L Pavement Rehabilitation  
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 

DESIGN PHASE CONSULTANT ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Kimley-Horn and Associates in the amount of $319,524 for design 
services.  Kimley-Horn was selected as part of an RFP process that included six 
proposers, and is experienced in this type of work.  
 
FUNDING 
 
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 

Design (by Contract) $319,524 

Subtotal $319,524 

Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance  $2,000,000 

Estimated Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract ) $250,000 

Subtotal $2,250,000 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $2,569,524 
 
This project is 90 percent funded by a Federal Aviation Administration grant.  There are 
sufficient appropriated funds in the Airport Capital Fund to cover the cost of this 
contract.   
 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/OT/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No. 7 
 

File Code No. 330.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Introduction Of Ordinance For Granting Of Easements On City 

Property At Chapala And Yanonali Streets  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    
 
That Council introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Granting of Easements for Public 
Utilities In and Under the City-Owned Property at Chapala and Yanonali Streets, and 
Authorizing the Public Works Director to Execute Agreements with Southern California 
Edison Company, Verizon California Inc., Cox Communications California LLC, and 
Crown Castle NG West Inc., to Grant Easements Related to the City-Owned Property 
at Chapala and Yanonali Streets.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Several overhead utility facilities owned by Southern California Edison Company (SCE), 
Verizon California Inc. (Verizon), Cox Communications California, LLC (Cox), and 
Crown Castle NG West Inc. (Crown Castle), currently exist in a portion of Chapala 
Street, northwest of Yanonali Street, vacated (via City Ordinance No. 4991, document 
number 97-002986, recorded in the County of Santa Barbara Recorder’s Office) on 
January 17, 1997 (Assessor’s Parcel Number 033-041-012). The intent of the City was 
to incorporate this vacated roadway into the Santa Barbara Railroad Station parcels. 
When that portion of Chapala Street was vacated, a public service/utility easement was 
created on behalf of the City and certain named utility companies.  
 
It is necessary to relocate these overhead facilities to accommodate the construction of 
the City’s Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project (scheduled for construction in 
June 2013), and the construction of the County of Santa Barbara Flood Control District’s 
(“County”) Lower Mission Creek Reach 2A, By-pass Box Culvert Project (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Box Culvert”), scheduled for construction in 2014 (see Attachment). 
The Historic Landmarks Commission reviewed and approved the Chapala Bridge 



Council Agenda Report 
Introduction Of Ordinance For Granting Of Easements On City Property At Chapala And 
Yanonali Streets 
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 

 

 

Replacement design plans, including the utility relocation plan, at its December 19, 
2012, meeting. 
 
Bridge replacement projects typically require some relocation of public utility facilities. 
This is an opportunity to have the utilities relocated underground, where feasible. The 
utility companies are participating in the undergrounding efforts at this location. 
 
To accommodate relocating the existing utilities underground, non-exclusive easements 
are proposed to be granted to SCE, Verizon, Cox, and Crown Castle, in and under the 
City-Owned Property at Chapala and Yanonali Streets (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Depot Triangle Property”). The Depot Triangle Property is part of the larger Santa 
Barbara Railroad Station parcels. The location of the undergrounded facilities was 
determined by considering the future location of the Box Culvert. Prior to the Box 
Culvert’s construction, the County will need to acquire an easement from the City over 
the abandoned Chapala Street and the Depot Triangle Property before beginning 
construction of the Box Culvert. The easement area to be granted to the utility 
companies and to the County will lie adjacent to each other.  
 
The proposed easement agreements stipulate that before the easements are granted, a 
record drawing legal description and plat map must be prepared to accompany each 
easement deed for recording. Once installed, SCE will take the lead to prepare the 
record drawing legal description, with all utilities in the same corridor, and City will then 
record the easement deeds. 
 
The easements to SCE, Verizon, and Cox shall be granted at no cost. The easement to 
Crown Castle shall be granted for a nominal consideration determined to be two 
thousand dollars ($2,000), as it has no prior individual rights within the existing public 
service/utility easement. Each of the four utility companies has executed an Agreement 
to Grant Easement with the City, which will give the utility companies permission to 
install the facilities under the Depot Triangle Property.  
 
The proposed Ordinance will authorize the execution of the necessary agreements by 
the Public Works Director on behalf of the City.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Site Map 

 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/MAW/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Utility Relocations at Chapala and Yanonali Streets

Overhead Lines, Permanent
New underground lines – permanent

R/WR/W

R/WR/W

Overhead Lines, Temporary

ATTACHMENT

Existing overhead lines to be removed

Ya
no

na
li 

St
re

et

Chapala
Street

DEPOT TRIANGLE 
PROPERTY
APN: 033-041-013

Easement Area
Future Box Culvert

Future Box Culvert

APN: 033-041-012



1 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE GRANTING OF 
EASEMENTS FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES IN AND UNDER 
THE CITY-OWNED PROPERTY AT CHAPALA AND 
YANONALI STREETS, AND AUTHORIZING THE PUBLIC 
WORKS DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY, VERIZON 
CALIFORNIA INC., COX COMMUNICATIONS CALIFORNIA 
LLC, AND CROWN CASTLE NG WEST INC., TO GRANT 
EASEMENTS RELATED TO THE CITY-OWNED 
PROPERTY AT CHAPALA AND YANONALI STREETS 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara’s Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project 
and the County of Santa Barbara Flood Control District’s Lower Mission Creek, Reach 
2A, By-pass Box Culvert Project, require the relocation of several above-ground utilities 
in order to construct the bridge and the box culvert; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara is prepared to enter into an Agreement to Grant 
Easement with Southern California Edison Company for the purposes of relocating 
existing overhead electrical and communication facilities now existing in that portion of 
Chapala Street vacated via City Ordinance No. 4991, to underground electrical and 
communication facilities in and under a portion of that certain tract of land owned by the 
City of Santa Barbara commonly known as APN: 033-041-013 (and referred to herein 
as the Depot Triangle Property);  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara is prepared to enter into an Agreement to Grant 
Easement with Verizon California Inc., for the purposes of relocating existing overhead 
communication facilities now existing in that portion of Chapala Street vacated via City 
Ordinance No. 4991, to underground communication facilities in and under the Depot 
Triangle Property;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara is prepared to enter into an Agreement to Grant 
Easement with Cox Communications California, LLC, for the purposes of relocating 
existing overhead communication facilities now existing in that portion of Chapala Street 
vacated via City Ordinance No. 4991, to underground communication facilities in and 
under a portion the Depot Triangle Property;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara is prepared to enter into an Agreement to Grant 
Easement with Crown Castle NG West Inc., for the purposes of relocating existing 
overhead communication facilities now existing in that portion of Chapala Street vacated 
via City Ordinance No. 4991, to underground communication facilities in and under a 
portion of that certain tract of land owned by the City of Santa Barbara commonly known 
as APN: 033-041-013 (and referred to herein as the Depot Triangle Property); and 



2 

 
WHEREAS, this ordinance will provide authorization by the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara for the Public Works Director to execute the agreements with each of the 
aforementioned utility companies, and provide for the grant and recordation of said 
easements. 
 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Public Works Director is hereby authorized by the Council of the City 
of Santa Barbara to execute the Agreement to Grant Easement with Southern California 
Edison Company, Verizon California Inc., Cox Communiciations Calfiornia, LLC, and 
Crown Castle NG West, Inc. for the purposes of relocating existing overhead electrical 
and communication facilities to underground facilities in and under the Depot Triangle 
Property. 
 
SECTION 2.  That the grant of a nonexclusive easement as set forth in the Easement 
Deed to each of Southern California Edison Company, Verizon California Inc., Cox 
Communications California, LLC, and Crown Castle NG West Inc., for the purposes of 
relocating existing overhead electrical and communication utilities now existing in that 
portion of Chapala Street vacated via City Ordinance No. 4991, displaced by the 
Chapala Street Bridge Replacement Project and the County of Santa Barbara Flood 
Control District’s Lower Mission Creek, Reach 2A, By-pass Box Culvert Project, and for 
all related purposes and uses in and under a portion of that certain tract of land owned 
by the City of Santa Barbara commonly known as APN: 033-041-013 and also referred 
to as the Depot Triangle Property, is approved pursuant to the City Charter Article V, 
Section 520, and the City Administrator is authorized to execute the same. 
 
SECTION 3.  That upon the effective date of the Ordinance, the City Clerk is authorized 
to record said Easement Deeds in the Official Records of the Office of the County 
Recorder, Santa Barbara County. 
 



Agenda Item No.  8 
 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 

 
AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Construction Management Services For The Punta 

Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 

contract with Filippin Engineering in the amount of $330,674 for construction 
management support services for the Punta Gorda Street Bridge Replacement 
Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to 
$33,067 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope 
of work; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 
contract with Penfield & Smith in the amount of $13,060 for engineering (design) 
support services for Lower Sycamore Creek Channel Widening, and authorize 
the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $1,306 for extra 
services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 
contract with Drake Haglan and Associates in the amount of $50,000 for 
engineering (design) support services for the Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $5,000 for extra services that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work; and 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a City Professional Services 
contract with Cardno ENTRIX in the amount of $90,881 for environmental 
coordination and biological monitoring services for the Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $9,088 for extra services that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
The Punta Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project (Project) is needed to 
incrementally widen Sycamore Creek to reduce neighborhood flooding. To move 
forward with the widening effort for this Project, the City needs to obtain construction 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Management Services For The Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project 
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 
 

 

management services to support staff, including construction management, engineering 
(design), and environmental and biological monitoring support services. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The Project involves two concurrent improvement components.  Component 1 is the 
Lower Sycamore Creek Channel Widening, located from U.S. Highway 101 to 
approximately 100 feet upstream, and just south of the Punta Gorda Street Bridge. 
Component 1 consists of constructing an earthen channel and other drainage facilities, 
planting landscape materials, and installing irrigation systems.   
 
Component 2 is the Punta Gorda Street Bridge Replacement Project, located from the 
upstream limit of Component 1 to approximately 100 feet upstream of the Punta Gorda 
Street Bridge.  Component 2 consists of removing and replacing a concrete bridge and 
roadway approaches, relocating water and sewer facilities, constructing an earthen 
channel, planting landscape materials, and installing irrigation systems.  The proposed 
bridge consists of a precast/pre-stressed concrete deck and cast-in-place concrete 
abutment walls that incorporate cast-in-drilled-hole concrete foundations. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has been coordinating with the 
City, and started the Sycamore Creek widening effort with its U.S. Highway 101 
Widening Project from Milpas Street to Hot Springs Road.  This Caltrans project has 
now widened Sycamore Creek under U.S. Highway 101 to accommodate triple capacity 
of Sycamore Creek.  The City will continue the creek widening effort with the Project 
from U.S. Highway 101 to approximately 100 feet upstream of the Punta Gorda Street 
Bridge. See Attachment for previous Council actions, grant funding, discretionary board 
approval, and encroachment removals. 
 
On September 7, 2012, the City received notification from the California Department of 
Housing and Community Development of a conditional approval of the DRI grant funds 
in the total amount of $2,662,525, for creek channel widening and bridge replacement 
improvements.  The grant funds can only be used towards construction.  Favorable 
construction bids are anticipated, and the full grant fund amount may not be needed. 
 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Filippin Engineering (Filippin) in the amount of $330,674 for construction 
management support services for the Project, and approve expenditures of up to 
$33,067 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
Staff requested proposals from consulting construction management firms and received 
proposals from four firms.  



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Management Services For The Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project 
April 16, 2013 
Page 3 
 

 

 
Staff evaluated the proposals and concluded that Filippin is the best qualified firm.  Staff 
negotiated the fee with Filippin and concluded that the fee is fair compensation for the 
services. 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with P&S in the amount of $13,060 for engineering (design) support services 
for Component 1 of the Project, and approve expenditures of up to $1,306 for extra 
services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. P&S was the 
designer of Component 1. Staff reviewed and concluded that P&S’s proposal is fair and 
reasonable and would provide the best value and continuity of services without delay. 
 
Staff also recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with DHA in the amount of $50,000 for engineering (design) support services 
for Component 2 of the Project, and approve expenditures of up to $5,000 for extra 
services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work.  DHA was the 
designer of Component 2.  Staff reviewed and concluded that DHA’s proposal is fair and 
reasonable and would provide the best value and continuity of services without delay.   
 
Lastly, Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Cardno ENTRIX (Cardno) in the amount of $90,881 for environmental 
coordination and biological monitoring services for the Project, and approve 
expenditures of up to $9,088 for extra services that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work.  Cardno provided the biological studies for the design of the 
Project.  Staff reviewed and concluded that Cardno’s proposal is fair and reasonable 
and would provide the best value and continuity of services without delay.  
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
 
Two months in advance of starting construction, staff will hold a Community Outreach 
workshop within the neighborhood of the Project.  Written notices will be mailed to 
adjacent properties within 300 feet of the Project site.  The Community Outreach 
workshop will provide a forum for staff interaction with the neighborhood to provide 
information and answer questions about the Project.  Renderings and construction 
plans of the Project will be exhibited.  Project fact sheets will be distributed which will 
contain information about the Project’s benefit, location, construction schedule, traffic 
control showing temporary road closures and detours for vehicles, pedestrians, and bus 
routes, staff’s contact information, and the City website information for construction 
status updates. 
 
Staff will be mailing written notices at a minimum of two weeks in advance of the start of 
construction activity.  The written notices will provide detailed information of construction 
hours, and staff’s contact information will also be provided. 
 
Once the construction contractor is issued the notice to proceed, the construction 
contractor will deliver another written notice 72 hours in advance of any construction 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Management Services For The Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project 
April 16, 2013 
Page 4 
 

 

activity to the adjacent properties within 300 feet from the Project site.  In addition, the 
construction contractor will install a sign at the Project site that will show contact 
information of staff, the contractor, and the Project’s environmental coordinator during 
the construction phase. 
 
FUNDING   
 
The Project’s construction cost is federally funded in part by the 2010-2011 Community 
Development Block Grant Component Award for the 2008 Disaster Recovery Initiative 
Program.  The following summarizes all Project design and construction costs: 
 

PROJECT COSTS 
*Cents have been rounded to the nearest dollar in this table.   

 

Project Cost 
Federal 
Share 

City Share Total 

Design Cost - DHA (Contract) $0 $166,000 $166,000 
Design Cost - P&S (Contract) $0 $257,720 $257,720 
Other Design Cost - Environmental (Contract) $0 $8,834 $8,834 
Other Design Cost - Land Survey (City Staff) $0 $27,278 $27,278 
Project Management (City Staff) $0 $116,556 $116,556 

 Subtotal  $0 $576,388 $576,388 
Estimated Construction Contract Cost 
(Contract) 

$1,506,808 $34,192 $1,541,000 

Estimated Construction Contract Change 
Order 

$280,773 $0 $280,773 

Construction Management Cost (City Staff) $0 $111,008 $111,008 
Construction Management 
Support/Inspection/Material Testing Cost 
(Contract) 

$363,741 $0 $363,741 

Subtotal $2,151,322 $145,200 $2,296,522 
Other Construction Cost - Engineering 
Support Services (DHA Contract) 

$55,000 $0 $55,000 

Other Construction Cost - Engineering 
Support Services (P&S Contract) 

$14,366 $0 $14,366 

Other Construction Cost - Environmental 
Coordination/Biological Monitoring (Contract) 

$99,969 $0 $99,969 

 Subtotal $169,335 $0 $169,335 
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $2,320,657 $721,588 $3,042,245 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Management Services For The Punta Gorda Street Bridge 
Replacement Project 
April 16, 2013 
Page 5 
 

 

 
There are sufficient appropriated and budgeted funds in the Streets Capital Program to 
cover current and future City costs.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
 
The Project has received all necessary environmental permits or approvals for 
construction.  The Project includes a low-flow fish passage channel for the Tidewater 
Goby and riparian bank protection and planting. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Project Milestones 
 
PREPARED BY: Linda Sumansky, Principal Engineer/JI/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



ATTACHMENT 
 

 
 

PROJECT MILESTONES 
 
 
Council Actions 
 
On January 13, 2009, Council authorized a contract with Penfield & Smith (P&S), to 
prepare a study and conceptual design options for Sycamore Creek, between the Union 
Pacific Railroad Bridge and approximately 100 feet upstream of Indio Muerto Street.   
 
On February 23, 2010, Council authorized P&S to complete the final design services for 
creek channel widening between U.S. Highway 101 and Punta Gorda Street. 
 
On October 4, 2011, Council approved an increase in appropriations and estimated 
revenues in the amount of $3,392,985 for the newly created Disaster Recovery Initiative 
(DRI) Fund.  This appropriation included $2,662,525 for the Project, $409,700 for San 
Pedro Creek Sewer Line Relocation, $250,000 for an update to the City’s Safety 
Element, and $70,760 for general administration.  
 
On December 6, 2011, Council authorized Drake Haglan and Associates (DHA) to 
complete final design services for the replacement of the Punta Gorda Street Bridge. 
 
Grant Funding 
 
On September 7, 2012, the City received notification from the California Department of 
Housing and Community Development of a conditional approval of the DRI grant funds 
in the total amount of $2,662,525, for creek channel widening and bridge replacement 
improvements.  The grant funds can only be used towards construction.  Favorable 
construction bids are anticipated, and the full grant fund amount may not be needed. 
 
Discretionary Board Approval 
 
On September 7, 2012, the Project received final design approval from the Architectural 
Board of Review.  
 
Encroachment Removals 
 
On August 25, 2009, Council authorized the Public Works Director to terminate the 
Encroachment Permit (Agreement No. 16,786, Ordinance No. 4788) of Santa Barbara 
Green Mobile Home Park. On November 30, 2012, the Green Mobile Home Park 
finished removing and relocating the mobile home coaches away from the City’s creek 
right of way. 
 
On September 28, 2012, the former Deluxe Mobile Home Park finished removing the 
remaining, dilapidated building that was located at the southeast corner of the vacant 
property, away from the City’s creek right of way. 
 



Agenda Item No.  9 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements For The Eight 

Months Ended February 28, 2013 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2013 Interim Financial Statements for the Eight 
Months Ended February 28, 2013. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The interim financial statements for the eight months ended February 28, 2013 (66.7% 
of the fiscal year) are attached.  The interim financial statements include budgetary 
activity in comparison to actual activity for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, Internal 
Service Funds, and select Special Revenue Funds. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Interim Financial Statements for the Eight Months Ended 

February 28, 2013 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Nemes, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



jhopwood
Text Box
Attachment







































Agenda Item No.  12 

File Code No.  150.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation From Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District 

on Marine Vessel Speed Reduction Initiative 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council receive a presentation from the Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control 
District on a marine vessel speed reduction initiative. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District’s will give a presentation to 
Council on an initiative to reduce vessel speed. A fact sheet is attached.      
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Vessel Speed Reduction Initiative Fact Sheet 

 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 

 

 
 

Vessel Speed Reduction Initiative 
Fact Sheet 

 
GOAL 
Advance California’s clean-transportation goals and sustainable freight strategy by implementing a 
voluntary vessel speed reduction incentive program to cut greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and other 
air pollutants, with the ancillary benefit of potentially protecting endangered whale species along the 
California coast.  

APPROACH 
The initiative would use California Cap-and-Trade auction funds to expand the existing vessel speed 
reduction incentive programs at the Ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach.  The Ports of Los Angeles and 
Long Beach speed reduction incentive programs 
have been successfully implemented with 
participation rates over 90%, and have achieved 
significant air pollutant reductions by limiting 
vessel speeds to 12 knots or less.   
 
Participation in an expanded program using Cap-
and-Trade funds would be contingent on 
participation in the existing Ports programs, so 
the initiative would support the Ports’ current 
clean-air goals while extending the benefits 
through the Santa Barbara Channel and possibly 
along the California coast. 

 
PHASE ONE:  DEVELOPMENT AND PILOT (1-2 years) 
Working with the Ports, stakeholders, and shipping companies the Santa Barbara County Air Pollution 
Control District (SBCAPCD) will take the lead, determining incentive structure, costs, emission 
reductions, and emissions verification systems, and implement a pilot program from the slow speed 
zone boundary at the Los Angeles ports through the Santa Barbara Channel. 

PHASE TWO: PROGRAM ROLL-OUT (2nd-3rd year out) 

Program roll-out to larger portion of California coast, or entire coast. 

BENEFITS  

This is a prime and unique opportunity to fulfill multiple objectives of AB 32 (Global Warming Solutions 
Act of 2006) and AB 1532 (Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund). Through a single policy mechanism, the 
project can cut shipping emissions of greenhouse gases, nitrogen oxides, and other air pollutants by up 
to 50 percent. The initiative supports the existing Port programs and helps ensure ships reduce speeds 
even during favorable economic conditions when it has been shown that they increase speeds. The 

Photo courtesy of John Calambokidis, Cascadia Research Collective 

jjennings
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT



 

initiative would complement clean-air efforts, and is in line with clean-transportation and sustainable-
freight strategies.  In addition, reduced ship speeds could reduce the severity of injury to whales should 
a ship-whale collision occur. 

MEASURABLE BENEFITS  
 Reduces GHG Air Pollution:  Reducing vessel speed to 12 knots will reduce shipping GHG 

emissions by 50%.   
o In California up to 2,580,000 tonnes/year1 
o In the Santa Barbara Channel up to 369,762 tonnes/year1   

 Reduces Nitrogen Oxides Air Pollution (NOx is a precursor to ozone):  Reducing vessel speeds 
to 12 knots will reduce NOx by 56%.  

o In California up to 43,108 tons/year1 
o In the Santa Barbara Channel up to 6,760 

tons/year1 

 Improving Air Quality for Human Health:  
Additional  particulate matter reductions beyond 
CARB marine vessel fuel regulation2    

 Improving Whale Protection: Ships traveling 12 
knots or less could help reduce the chance of a 
lethal ship strike of a whale. 3 

COORDINATED SOLUTION STRATEGY 
The SBCAPCD proposes this unique program that finds common ground and pursues diverse 
partnership. The District and its Board, which is made up the five Santa Barbara County Supervisors and 
representatives from each incorporated city in the County, have been pursuing reducing emissions from 
cargo ships since 1994.  
 
This proposal also has the support and backing of a number of stakeholders, including members of a 
Marine Shipping Solutions Group that has been meeting regularly. This group includes federal agencies 
(National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s (NOAA) National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), 
Channel Islands National Marine Sanctuary (CINMS), U.S. Coast Guard, and CINMS Advisory Council), 
NGO groups (Environmental Defense Center (EDC), Ocean Conservancy (OC), and Community 
Environmental Council (CEC), leading scientists (John Calambokidis, Cascadia Research Collective, Inc.), 
and local elected leaders. 

CONCLUSION 
This innovative program expands a successful program already in place and offers a unique opportunity 
to reduce GHG and other air pollution emissions. It also protects human health and marine wildlife, 
complies with the requirements of AB 32 and AB 1532, and can achieve shared goals across a broad 
range of stakeholders. 

  
 

                                                           
1
 Santa Barbara County Air Pollution Control District calculations.  

2
 Yusuf Khan et al. 2012.  Greenhouse Gas and Criteria Emission Benefits through Reduction of Vessel Speed at Sea.  

Environmental Science & Technology. 46 (22) pp 12600-12607. 
3
 Vanderlaan, A.S.M. and Taggart, C.T. 2007. Vessel Collisions with Whales: The probability of lethal injury based on vessel 

speed. Marine Mammal Science 23(1): 144-156. 

Photo courtesy of NOAA 



 

Vessel Speed Reduction (VSR) Initiative 
Compatibility with AB 1532 

 
The VSR initiative builds on and expands the existing Ports of Long Beach and Los Angeles vessel speed 
reduction incentive programs.  It fulfills funding requirements for investing in “low-carbon 
transportation” as outlined in newly-enacted statutory requirements4 directing how AB 32 Cap-and- 
Trade auction funds are allocated while furthering the California Air Resources Board’s Sustainable 
Freight Strategy.5  In addition to reducing GHG emissions, the proposal fulfills funding goals required by 
legislation including: (1)  maximizing economic, environmental, and public health benefits; (2) 
complementing efforts to improve air quality, (3) providing opportunities for businesses, public 
agencies, nonprofits, and others to participate in efforts to reduce GHG emissions, and  (4) lessening 
impacts and effects of climate change.  The following table outlines how the VSR initiative meets specific 
legal requirements outlined in AB 1532.   
 
      

AB 1532 Vessel Speed Reduction Initiative 
 
(b) Moneys shall be used to facilitate the 
achievement of reductions of greenhouse gas 
emissions in this state consistent with this division 
and, where applicable and to the extent feasible: 
 
(1) Maximize economic, environmental, and public 
health benefits to the state. 

 
GHG reductions up to 50% from shipping 
 
Economic: supports ports by avoiding regulatory 
approach that could discourage ships from CA port 
calls; enhances ability of coastal areas to meet air 
standards 
Environmental: whale  and other species protection  
Public health: reductions in criteria pollutants,  
particulate and air toxics  
 

 
(3) Complement efforts to improve air quality. 

 
Reductions in criteria pollutants, particulate and air 
toxics. 
 

 
(5) Provide opportunities for businesses, public 
agencies, nonprofits, and other community 
institutions to participate in and benefit from 
statewide efforts to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 
 

 
Public agencies: SBCAPCD, NOAA, potentially other 
air districts, County and City of Santa Barbara 
Nonprofits: stakeholder organizations (EDC, CEC,OC) 
Other community (CINMS Advisory Council) 
Shipping Representatives: Marine Exchange, PMSA 
Ports:  Ports of Long Beach and Los Angeles  
 

 
(6) Lessen the impacts and effects of climate change 
on the state’s communities, economy, and 
environment.  

 
Reducing GHG emissions  

                                                           
4
 AB 1532, SB 535, and SB 1018 

5
 California Environmental Protection Agency - Air Resources Board, January 2013.  Annual Report to the Joint Legislative 

Budget Committee on Assembly Bill 32 (Chapter 488, Statutes of 2006) The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006.  
This report can be viewed at: http://www.arb.ca.gov/mandrpts/mandrpts.htm. 



 

 

 
(c) Moneys appropriated from the fund may be 
allocated, consistent with subdivision (a), for the 
purpose of reducing greenhouse gas emissions in 
this state through investments that may include, 
but are not limited to, any of the following:  
(2) Funding to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
through the development of state-of-the-art 
systems to move goods and freight…  
 

 
Improving efficiencies of moving goods and freight 
and consistent with ARB’s Sustainable Freight 
Strategy  

 
(6) Funding to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
through investments in programs implemented by 
local and regional agencies, local and regional 
collaboratives, and nonprofit organizations 
coordinating with local governments… 

 
Regional collaborative; partnership with nonprofits 
and government  

 
(7) Funding in research, development, and 
deployment of innovative technologies, measures, 
and practices related to programs and projects 
funded pursuant to this part. 
 

 
Research and development of innovative measures 
and practices to reduce ship speeds. 

 
The investment plan, consistent with the 
requirements of Section 39712, shall do all of the 
following: 
(1) Identify the state’s short-term and long-term 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals and 
targets by sector. 
(2) Analyze gaps, where applicable, in current state 
strategies to meeting the state’s greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction goals by sector. 
 

 
CARB identified that it would assess a ship speed 
reduction rule as part of GHG measures in AB 32 
scoping plan: 
http://www.arb.ca.gov/ports/marinevess/vsr/vsr.htm 
 
This assessment has yet to be completed, and 
regulatory measure uncertain, so this approach could 
fill gap.  
 

 

   

http://www.arb.ca.gov/ports/marinevess/vsr/vsr.htm


Agenda Item No.  13 
 

File Code No.  240.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Public Works Department 
 Administration Division, Finance Department 
 City Attorney’s Office 
  
SUBJECT: Adoption Of Ordinance To Approve An Installment Sale Agreement, 

Trust Agreement And Continuing Disclosure Agreement In 
Connection With The Potential Sale Of Water Revenue Refunding 
Certificates Of Participation 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the City of Santa Barbara 
Authorizing the Execution and Delivery by the City of an Installment Sale Agreement, a 
Trust Agreement and a Continuing Disclosure Agreement in Connection with the 
Execution and Delivery of City of Santa Barbara Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of 
Participation, Series 2013, and Authorizing Related Actions. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff from the Public Works Department, Finance Department and the City Attorney’s 
Office have been working toward the sale of Water Fund certificates of participation to 
refinance the existing 2002 Refunding Certificates of Participation and, potentially, 
outstanding 2002 and 2003 State Department of Water Resources revolving loans.  
 
The purpose of refinancing existing debt is to capitalize on the historically low interest rate 
environment and thereby realize savings in current interest costs. Staff anticipates selling 
the new certificates of participation in May 2013. 
 
In connection with the sale of the certificates of participation, the City will be entering into 
various long-term agreements that, because they exceed five years in term, require 
adoption of a City ordinance to approve the execution of the agreements.  
 
One of the agreements is the Installment Purchase Agreement. This agreement is 
between the City of Santa Barbara and the Santa Barbara Financing Authority (Authority).   
The Authority was created pursuant to a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement between the 
City of Santa Barbara and the Redevelopment Agency of the City.  Pursuant to AB 1x26, 
as amended, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved as of February 1, 2012.  The 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of Ordinance To Approve An Installment Purchase Agreement, Trust Agreement 
And Continuing Disclosure Agreement In Connection With The Potential Sale Of Water 
Revenue Refunding Certificates Of Participation 
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 

 

Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency succeeded to the Redevelopment 
Agency and assumed all of the rights, duties and obligations of the former Redevelopment 
Agency.  The Authority was organized for the purpose of assisting and facilitating the 
financing for purposes authorized under the Joint Powers Act. 
 
The Installment Sales Agreement provides for the sale by the City of the improvements 
(“Project”), financed by the original bonds issued by Water Fund, to the Authority and then 
the purchase of the Project from the Authority by the City. The City will utilize net revenue 
from the Water Fund to make installment payments to the Authority which will be used to 
pay the debt service on the refinancing certificates of participation. The Installment Sale 
Agreement sets out the main security parameters for the certificates such as the rate 
covenant and conditions under which additional debt can be issued. 
 
The City will also need to execute a Trust Agreement between the City, Authority and U.S. 
Bank National Association through which the right to receive the installment payments, 
and interest thereon, will be assigned by the Authority to the Trustee. 
 
The Continuing Disclosure Agreement requires the City to provide to the Trustee, acting 
as Dissemination Agent, for the benefit of the holders of the Certificates, certain financial 
information and notice of certain material events (such as change in certificate rating) on 
an ongoing basis.  Each year, as long as the bonds are outstanding, the City has a 
requirement to submit financial information to bondholders and the general investment 
industry pursuant to Securities Exchange Commission requirements. This includes 
updated information regarding the finances of the City, in this case of the Water Fund, so 
that current bondholders and potential investors can assess if financial conditions have 
changed relative to the financial information contained in the original bond offering 
documents. The City provides the continuing disclosures to the Trustee, who then files the 
information to the Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system administered by 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  EMMA is a centralized online source for free 
access to municipal disclosures, market transparency data and educational materials 
about the municipal securities market.  
 
Next Steps 
 
During the next two months, City staff will be proceeding with the next steps: 
 

1. Authority adoption of a resolution authorizing the execution of the Installment 
Purchase Agreement and Trust Agreement and the execution of the 
certificates.  

2. Meeting with bond rating agencies to secure a bond rating, which will have a 
direct impact of the interest rates offered through the competitive bid process. 

3. Sale of the Certificates  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of Ordinance To Approve An Installment Purchase Agreement, Trust Agreement 
And Continuing Disclosure Agreement In Connection With The Potential Sale Of Water 
Revenue Refunding Certificates Of Participation 
April 16, 2013 
Page 3 

 

With its adoption, the ordinance will become effective thirty days later (May 16th). The sale 
of the certificates is currently scheduled for the week following the effective date of the 
ordinance. 
 
Copies of the Installment Sales Agreement, the Trustee Agreement and the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement are available for review by the public at the City Clerk’s Office and 
available to Council members in the City Council’s reading file.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 Sarah Knecht, Assistant City Attorney 
  
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



 1   

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

Ordinance of the City of Santa Barbara Authorizing the Execution and 
Delivery by the City of an Installment Sale Agreement, a Trust Agreement 
and a Continuing Disclosure Agreement in Connection with the Execution 
and Delivery of City of Santa Barbara Water Revenue Refunding 
Certificates of Participation, Series 2013, and Authorizing Related Actions 

WHEREAS, the City and the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara 
(“Agency”), which Agency was on February 1, 2012, succeeded to by the Successor Agency to 
the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara, have heretofore entered into a Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2002 (the “Joint Powers Agreement”), which 
Joint Powers Agreement creates and establishes the Santa Barbara Financing Authority 
(“Authority”); 

WHEREAS, in order to refinance the acquisition, construction and installation of certain 
improvements (the “Project”) to its water system, the City of Santa Barbara (the “City”) caused 
to be executed and delivered the City of Santa Barbara Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of 
Participation Series 2002 (the “Prior Certificates”); 

WHEREAS, the Prior Certificates evidence undivided proportionate interests of the 
owners thereof in installment payments (the “Prior Installment Payments”) to be made by the 
City pursuant to an Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2002, by and between the 
City and the Authority; 

WHEREAS, in order to achieve certain savings, the City desires to refinance the Project 
by exercising its option to prepay the Prior Installment Payments, which prepayment will be 
applied to the redemption of the Prior Certificates; 

WHEREAS, in order to refinance the Project, the City will sell the Project to the 
Authority and then purchase the Project from the Authority pursuant to an Installment Sale 
Agreement (the “Installment Sale Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the City and the Authority have determined that it would be in the best 
interests of the City and the Authority to provide the funds necessary to refinance the Project 
through the execution and delivery, pursuant to a Trust Agreement (the “Trust Agreement”), by 
and among U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), the Authority and the 
City, of the City of Santa Barbara Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 
2013 (the “Certificates”), evidencing direct, fractional undivided interests in the installment 
payments (the “Installment Payments”), and the interest thereon, payable by the City under the 
Installment Sale Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the City has received three loans from the State of California (the “State”) 
under the State’s Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Law of 1997 as follows: (1) a not to 
exceed loan of $19,200,000 to fund the Cater Water Treatment Plant Improvement Project 
(Project No. 4210010-02) (the “2002 SRF Loan”), (2)  a not to exceed loan of $20,000,000 to 
fund the Sheffield Reservoir Project (Project No. 4210010-01) (the “2003 SRF Loan”), and (3) a 



 2 

not to exceed loan of $29,283,000 to fund a project to meet safe drinking water standards 
(Project No. 4210010-004C) (the “2010 SRF Loan”); 

  WHEREAS, the 2002 SRF Loan and the 2003 SRF Loan (the “Subordinated Prior 
Loans”) are currently subordinate in payment to the Prior Certificates; 

WHEREAS, the City has requested the State to continue the subordination of the 
payment of the Subordinated Prior Loans to the payment of the Certificates; 

WHEREAS, if the State refuses the City’s request to continue the subordination of the 
payment of the Subordinated Prior Loans to the payment of the Certificates or if there are 
reasonable savings with respect to the refinancing of the Subordinated Prior Loans, the City may, 
upon the advice and recommendation of the City’s financial advisor, determine to refinance 
either or both of the Subordinated Prior Loans concurrently with the refinancing of the Prior 
Certificates;  

WHEREAS, if the City determines to refinance the Subordinated Prior Loans 
concurrently with the refinancing of the Prior Certificates, the Trust Agreement and the 
Installment Sale Agreement shall be appropriately revised to reflect such refinancing;  

WHEREAS, all rights to receive the Installment Payments, and the interest thereon, will 
be assigned without recourse by the Authority to the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement; 

WHEREAS, in consideration of such assignment and the execution of the Trust 
Agreement, the Trustee will execute and deliver the Certificates, each evidencing a direct, 
fractional undivided interest in the Installment Payments, and the interest thereon; 

WHEREAS, in order to refinance the acquisition, construction and installation of certain 
other improvements to its water system, the City caused to be executed and delivered the City of 
Santa Barbara Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1994A (the “Prior Bonds”); 

WHEREAS, City intends to refund the outstanding Prior Bonds by making, from 
available City funds, including the debt service reserve fund on deposit with the Trustee , a cash 
deposit with the trustee for the Prior Bonds in an amount equal to the outstanding principal of 
and interest on the Prior Bonds through the date of redemption; 

WHEREAS, Rule 15c2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
requires that, in order to be able to purchase or sell the Certificates, the purchaser thereof must 
have reasonably determined that the City has undertaken in a written agreement or contract for 
the benefit of the holders of the Certificates to provide disclosure of certain financial information 
and certain material events on an ongoing basis; 

WHEREAS, in order to cause such requirement to be satisfied, the City desires to enter 
into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”) with the 
Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) has been presented with 
the form of each of the Installment Sale Agreement, the Trust Agreement and the Continuing 



 3 

Disclosure Agreement, and the City Council has examined and approved each such document 
and desires to authorize and direct the execution of such documents, subject to revision in the 
event that the Subordinated Prior Loans are refinanced as described above; 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Santa Barbara does ordain as 
follows: 

Section 1.  All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct and the City Council 
so finds. 

Section 2.  The form of Installment Sale Agreement, presented in connection with and 
prior to this meeting and on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the City 
Administrator of the City, the Finance Director of the City, the Public Works Director of the 
City, the City Attorney or his or her designee (each, an “Authorized Officer”), are each hereby 
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute, acknowledge 
and deliver the Installment Sale Agreement in substantially the form presented in connection 
with and prior to this meeting with such changes therein as the Authorized Officers executing the 
same may require or approve in consultation with the City Attorney and Bond Counsel, which 
approval shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof; provided, 
however, that the aggregate amount of the Installment Payments shall not exceed $45,000,000, 
the final Installment Payment shall be payable no later than October 1, 2026 and there shall be 
net present value savings with respect to the refinancing of the Prior Certificates of at least 3%, 
and if either or both of the Subordinated Prior Loans are refinanced there shall be additional 
reasonable present value savings as determined by the Authorized Officers in consultation with 
and based upon the advice and recommendation of the City’s financial advisor. 

Section 3.  The form of Trust Agreement,  presented in connection with and prior to this 
meeting and on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the Authorized Officers are 
each hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, to execute 
and deliver the Trust Agreement in substantially the form presented in connection with and prior 
to this meeting with such changes therein as the Authorized Officers executing the same may 
require or approve in consultation with the City Attorney and Bond Counsel, which approval to 
be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. 

Section 4.  The form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement, presented in connection with 
and prior to this meeting and on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the Authorized 
Officers are each hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the City, 
to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Continuing Disclosure Agreement in substantially the 
form presented in connection with and prior to this meeting, with such changes therein as the 
Authorized Officers executing the same may require or approve in consultation with the City 
Attorney and Bond Counsel, which approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and 
delivery thereof. 

Section 5.  The Authorized Officers are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to 
consummate the transactions herein authorized and otherwise to carry out, give effect to and 
comply with the terms and intent of this Ordinance, including, without limitation, the deposit 



 4 

with the trustee for the Prior Bonds of sufficient available funds of the City to refund the 
outstanding Prior Bonds;  

Section 6.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers, employees and agents of the City 
with respect to the transactions set forth above are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified. 

Section 7.  The Mayor shall sign and the City Clerk shall attest to the passage of this 
Ordinance.  The City Council hereby orders that, in lieu of the publication of this Ordinance once 
in the official newspaper of the City within 15 days after its adoption, this Ordinance shall be 
published by title only once in the official newspaper of the City within 15 days after its 
adoption, provided that the full text shall be available to the public at the City Clerk’s Office, and 
such publication by title only shall so state.  This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from 
and after the date of its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara at a regular 
meeting of said City Council on April 9, 2013, by the following vote of said City Council: 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent: 

Abstain: 

 
 
  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
 
  

City Clerk Services Manager 
 



 

  

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK 

I, Gwendolynn B. Peirce, City Clerk Services Manager of the City of Santa Barbara, do 
hereby certify as follows: 

That the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. ___, which was duly 
introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara duly and 
regularly and legally held at the regular meeting place thereof on April 9, 2013, of which 
meeting all of the members of the City Council of said City had due notice and at which a 
quorum was present, and which was thereafter duly adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara duly and regularly and legally held at 
the regular meeting place thereof on April __, 2013, of which meeting all of the members of the 
City Council of said City had due notice and at which a quorum was present. 

That an agenda of each of said meetings was posted at least 72 hours before said meeting 
at 740 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, California, a location freely accessible to members of the 
public, and a brief description of said Ordinance appeared on said agenda. 

That I have carefully compared the foregoing copy with the original minutes of said 
April __, 2013 meeting on file and of record in my office; that said copy is a full, true and correct 
copy of the original Ordinance adopted at said meeting and entered in said minutes; and that said 
Ordinance has not been amended, modified, rescinded or revoked in any manner since the date 
of its adoption, and the same is now in full force and effect. 

Dated: _____________, 2013 
 
 
 

  
Gwendolynn B. Peirce 

City Clerk Services Manager 
[SEAL] 



Agenda Item No.  14 
 

File Code No.  230.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan For Fiscal Years 2014 And 

2015 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Receive the Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 

2015, including the Recommended Operating and Capital Budget for Fiscal Year 
2014;  

B. Hear a report from staff in connection with the filing of the Recommended Two-Year 
Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015; and 

C. Approve the proposed Schedule of Council Budget Review Meetings and Public 
Hearings of the Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 
2015.  

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In accordance with City Charter, the Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal 
Years 2014 and 2015 (“Recommended Plan”) has been filed with the City Clerk’s Office 
and is being submitted to Council today. The Recommended Plan covers a two-year 
planning horizon and includes the recommended operating and capital budget for the first 
year of the plan. In June, Council will adopt a Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 
2014 and 2015 as well as an operating and capital budget for fiscal year 2014.  
 
The current Recommended Plan was prepared in the context of a much improved local 
economy.  General Fund sales tax and transient occupancy tax revenues have been very 
strong in the last two years and are expected to continue growing in the next two years, 
although at a more moderate rate.  While the fiscal condition of the General Fund has 
greatly improved, some challenges still lay ahead, including continued increase in 
retirement costs and significantly underfunded capital needs.  
 



Council Agenda Report 
Recommended Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 

 

City staff has scheduled special budget work sessions over the next two months during 
which the details of the Recommended Plan will be presented and discussed as part of the 
budget public hearing process. Over the course of the public hearings, each City 
department will present their respective recommended budget, including their operating 
budget and capital program, if applicable, as well as proposed performance measures and 
objectives for their programs.  
 
The first of these special budget work sessions will be held on Thursday, May 1, from 3:00 
p.m. to 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers. The budget work sessions are scheduled at 
different times of the day and evening to encourage public participation. The proposed 
schedule for the special budget work sessions, at which the public hearings on the budget 
would be held, is included as an attachment to this report for Council’s approval. 
 
In addition to the public review by Council, staff recommends that the Finance Committee 
review certain elements of the Recommended Plan in more detail. The proposed Finance 
Committee Review Schedule will be presented to the Finance Committee for approval on 
April 19, 2011, just prior to the City Council meeting.  
 
A copy of the Recommended Plan will be available for review in the City Clerk’s Office and 
the Public Library’s main and eastside branches. It will also be available on the City’s 
website at www.SantaBarbaraCa.gov.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Schedule of Proposed Council Budget Review Meetings and 

Public Hearings 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 ATTACHMENT 
            

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
Two-Year Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015 

 

Schedule of Council Budget Review Meetings  
and Public Hearings 

 

MEETING DATE BUDGET AGENDA ITEM(S) 
 

SPECIAL 
WORKSESSION AND 
PUBLIC HEARING #1 

 
 

 
Wed., May 1, 2013 

3:00 – 6:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Open Budget Public Hearing 
 Department Budget Presentations for: 

- Finance   
- Community Promotions  
- Administrative Services 
- City Attorney’s Office 
- City Administrator’s Office  
- Mayor & Council   
 

 
SPECIAL 

WORKSESSION AND 
PUBLIC HEARING #2 

 

 
Thurs., May 2, 2013 

1:00 – 4:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Department Budget Presentations for: 

- Community Development / 
Successor Agency  

- Library 
 

SPECIAL 
WORKSESSION AND 
PUBLIC HEARING #3 

 

 
Mon., May 6, 2013 

2:00 – 5:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Department Budget Presentation for: 

- Public Works 

 
SPECIAL 

WORKSESSION AND 
PUBLIC HEARING #4 

 

 
Mon., May 13, 2013 

2:00 – 5:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Department Budget Presentation for: 

- Airport    
- Waterfront 
- Solid Waste Fund (Finance) 

 
SPECIAL 

WORKSESSION AND 
PUBLIC HEARING #5 

 

 
Wed., May 15, 2013 
9:30 am – 12:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Department Budget Presentations for: 

- Parks & Recreation (including 
Creeks and Golf Funds) 

 
SPECIAL 

WORKSESSION AND 
PUBLIC HEARING #6 

 

 
Mon, May 20, 2013 

2:00 – 5:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Department Budget Presentation for: 

- Fire 
- Police 



 ATTACHMENT 
 Page 2 

 
 

 
SPECIAL BUDGET 

WORKSESSION 
AND PUBLIC 
HEARING #7 

 

 
Wed., May 22, 2013 
9:00 am – 12:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Department Budget Presentation for: 

- Other presentations (if needed) 

 
SPECIAL BUDGET 

WORKSESSION 
AND PUBLIC 
HEARING #8 

 

 
Mon., June 3, 2013 

2:00 – 5:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Finance Committee Budget 

Recommendations to Council  
 Council Budget Deliberations 

 
SPECIAL BUDGET 

WORKSESSION 
AND PUBLIC 
HEARING #9 

 

 
Wed., June 5, 2013 

3:00 – 6:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Continue Council Budget 

Deliberations (if needed) 

 
SPECIAL BUDGET 

WORKSESSION 
AND PUBLIC 
HEARING #10 

 

 
Thurs., June 6, 2013 
9:00 am – 12:00 pm 
Council Chambers 

 
 Final Council Budget Deliberations  
 Close Budget Public Hearing 
 Final Council Budget Direction to Staff 
 

 
REGULAR  

CITY COUNCIL  
MEETING 

 

 
Tues., June 11, 

2013 
Afternoon session 
Council Chambers 

 

 
 Prop. 218 Hearing on Proposed 

Increases to Water, Wastewater and 
Solid Waste Rates 

 
REGULAR  

CITY COUNCIL  
MEETING 

 

 
Tues, June 18, 2013 

Afternoon session 
Council Chambers 

 

 
 Budget Adoption 

 
 



Agenda Item No.  15 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

 

 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of  2700 Miradero 

Drive 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council deny the appeal of Anne Senuta regarding the application of the Villa 
Miradero North Homeowners’ Association, and uphold the Architectural Board of 
Review’s approval to allow the Homeowners’ Association to remove 40 attached trellises. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
Project Description 
The subject site is an approximately six acre, two-family residential R-2 zoned parcel 
located in the East San Roque neighborhood.  The parcel is developed with a residential 
condominium complex consisting of 43 units in one-story four and five unit buildings.  The 
project is a proposal to remove all 40 existing wooden gable trellises attached to the 
residential condominium buildings. 
Project History 
On February 19, 2013 the application was presented to the Architectural Board of Review 
(ABR) by the president, vice president, and treasurer of the Villa Miradero North 
Homeowner’s Association.  The applicants explained that the trellises throughout the 
complex are dilapidated and in need of expensive repair and that they have concerns 
about the costs of future maintenance.   
 
The ABR considered the request in terms of the architectural design impacts to the 
complex, and also the repair and maintenance concerns of the applicant.  The ABR 
received a public comment letter via email in opposition to the project from Christopher 
Clayton, Villa Miradero North homeowner (Attachment 2).  The scope of work is simple 
removal of wood rafter trellis members, and cutting off and capping the support beams.  
The trellis beams are proposed to be cut so that a portion would still protrude beyond the 
roof rake tiles, at same angle as the existing beam ends to retain some of the architectural 
character of the beams (Attachment 3).  The ABR commented that the trellises provide 
architectural interest and character but also understood the maintenance reasons behind 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Architectural Board Of Review Approval Of 2700 Miradero Drive 
April 16, 2013 
Page 2 

 

the proposal. The ABR determined that the buildings had enough architectural interest 
without the trellises and approved the project with a unanimous vote (Attachment 4).   
On February 20 the building permit was made “ready to issue” to a licensed contractor.  
Because it is a simple demolition project, no plan check process was required.  On 
February 22, the homeowners association left notes for each unit involved in the project 
that work would begin three days later.  In response to this note, Anne Senuta, Villa 
Miradero North homeowner, filed an appeal of the ABR approval and permit issuance was 
halted on February 22 (Attachment 1). 
Appeal Issues 
The appellant is concerned that there was no public notification to the affected 
homeowners and they were unable to present their comments to the ABR.   

The appellant appreciates the architectural design, the aesthetics looking from inside her 
unit, the protection and shade provided by her trellis, and stated that other homeowners in 
the complex also object to their removal. 

The appellant believes the homeowners association failed to properly maintain the 
trellises and now wrongly justifies their removal with the argument that expensive repairs 
are necessary.  

Staff comments 
The scope of this alteration project did not require public notification by the City.  The 
Municipal Code defines specific projects that require a public mailed notice prior to ABR 
review.  The application was brought forward by the homeowners association.  The 
appropriate venue for individual homeowners to express their concerns on the decision to 
make this application, or past decisions on maintenance was in their association meetings.  
Staff met individually with the applicant and the appellant to urge them to find a compromise 
solution, informing them that the City should not mediate homeowners association disputes.   
 
The ABR gave appropriate consideration to the project and found that, while it would be 
desirable to retain the trellises, there are compelling costs and maintenance reasons for 
their removal, and the architectural quality of the complex would remain acceptable after 
their removal.  Staff recommends that Council deny the appeal and uphold the ABR’s 
approval.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Appeal letter 

2. Public comment letter 
3. Project plans and photographs 
4. ABR minutes of February 19, 2013 

 
PREPARED BY: Tony Boughman, Planning Technician II 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jaime Limón, Senior Planner 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 1



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 4























































Agenda Item No.  16 

File Code No.  440.05 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Conference With Labor Negotiator 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code Section 54957.6, to consider 
instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager, regarding 
negotiations with the Fire Management Association and the Police Officers’ Association, 
and regarding discussions with certain unrepresented managers about salaries and 
fringe benefits. 
 
SCHEDULING:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo López, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



Agenda Item No.  17 

File Code No.  330.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office  
 
SUBJECT: Conference with Real Property Negotiators – State Route 225 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session pursuant to the authority of Government Code 
§54956.8 to provide direction to the City Administrator and to the City Attorney regarding 
the relinquishment by the State of California of a portion of State Route 225 to the City of 
Santa Barbara. 
 
Real Property:    A portion of State Route 225 between Post Mile 0.031 to Post Mile 

4.55 (Castillo Street to Cliff Drive to Las Positas Road) within the City 
of Santa Barbara 

 
City Negotiators: Public Works Director and the City Attorney 
 
Negotiating Party:  CALTRANS, Deputy District Director Loe (San Luis Obispo District) 
 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Transfer and Compensation 
 
 
SCHEDULING: Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT:  None anticipated 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No.  18 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: April 16, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Request From Councilmember Francisco And Councilmember 

Rowse Regarding Alternatives To Narrowing Lower State Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council consider the request from Councilmember Francisco and Councilmember 
Rowse regarding alternatives to the narrowing of Lower State Street.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Attached is a memorandum from Councilmember Francisco and Councilmember Rowse 
requesting that Council receive community and staff input on the advisability of narrowing 
Lower State Street. Also attached is a memorandum from Community Development 
which outlines the history of the La Entrada project and the various design 
considerations.  The City Attorney will also be submitting a separate memorandum to 
Council outlining key legal issues related to the street improvements that are part of the La 
Entrada project.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Memorandum from Councilmember Francisco and 

Councilmember Rowse 
2. Memorandum from Community Development dated April 9, 

2013, regarding Entrada Project and Narrowing Lower State 
Street   

 
PREPARED BY: Jennifer Jennings, Administrator’s Office Supervisor 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Jim Armstrong, City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



City of Santa Barbara
Mayor and Council Office

Memorandum

March 26, 2013

TO: James L. Armstrong. City Administrator

FROM: Dale Francisco. Council Member
Randy Rowse, Council Member

SUBJECT:

Summary of Information to be Presented to the City Council

Twelve years ago the City Council approved a plan to narrow State Street from four lanes to
two lanes between the raiFroad tracks and Cabrillo Boulevard. This was part of the Entrada
project.
Now a very different Entrada project is going
exploding in the adjoining Funk Zone. The area
twelve years ago! and there is concern in the
State Street may result in traffic gridlock.
We want to bring together all the interested
community and waterfront area businesses,
and if not, what are the possible alternatives.

Statement of Specific Action the Council will be asked to take

Listen to community and staff input on the advisability of narrowing State Street, and based
on discussion! give direction to staff on bow or whether to proceed.

• Statement of the Reasons Why it is Appropriate and Within the Jurisdiction of the Council to
Consider this Sub[ect Matter and to Take the Requested Action

Transportation policy is of vital importance to the social and economic health of the city! and
is within the purview of City Council.

DATE:

Alternatives to Narrowing Lower State Street

forward. Commercial and retail activity is
has changed enormously from what it was

community that the proposed narrowing of

parties, including particularly the environmental
to discuss whether this idea still makes sense!
(See atlached document for more information.)

jjennings
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



Entrada and the Narrowing of State Street

The long-anticipated, long donant “La Entrada” project now flnally seems to be
becoming a reaiity. In the twelve years that ha ye passed between the original
conception and the ]atest iteration, much has changed about the project and its
surroundings. rhe City Council that originally approved tins projeci viewed a
vastly different ti so (fractional unit ownership vs. the flow propo sod I mc ury hold)
adjoined on one side by a group of low—in len si ty Or ‘ocean—uN e tel ated” properties
km Iwn as the Funk Z( Re.

The Funk Zone has now for some time been in the midst ofa commercial and
retail explosion, with no end in sight. New development will bnng wilh ((rank
impacts (hat were not aniicipated twelve years ago. Many in (he community are
concerned thai the old plan (0 narrow State Sired between the railroad tracks and
C ahh 110 til evarl from ft an es io tw< now has the potential to create

g’iificant traffic congestion antI a major bottleneck, particularly during
weekends in the peak tourist season.

Sonic have argued that this narrowing simply continues the changes thai were
made many years ago to (he State Sired Plaza’ north tiE Guiien-ez wi ihout any
serious problems. This ignores (he glaring hict thaL Siaie Street north of Gutiemrey
is supplenienied hy Cliapala Sireet amid Anacapa Street for coirniercial deliveries
and cusiomer parking. No such alteniative routes exist below the freeway.

The existing wide boulevard creates an open vista that allows for pedestrian.
motorist, and cyclist views of our mountain skyline. Narrowing (he roadway,
eornbinod with the construction on both sides of new int’l ti—s tory h oil dings, will
likely resti It in a constricted urbaTi ‘‘can Von’’ C ieei.

The city has committed to enhancing public safety by rejecting hardscape
con stiTcti ons on mnaj or axteri al s. The De Ia Vina ‘V and Cliff Drive re— stri pings are
excellent examples of this. The l’sunami Impact Zone overlays the Entrada
development area: the restriction of egress from the coastal zone is aniithetieal to
establishod efforts and policies.

L.asLly he nam)wing ol this primary gateway to the city creates a physical and
psychological hairier to both vehicular and pedestrian transit to our downtown,
and would be a further detriment to a commercial zone that already st,ffcrs from
the impacts ofrestrietcd parking, traffic congestion, and street crime.

We believe that the entire community and all the various stakeholders deserve an
open forum to discuss whether this major change to State Street still makes sense.
and what superior alternatives might exist.



 1 

City of Santa Barbara  
Community Development 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
DATE: April 9, 2013 
 
TO: Mayor and Council  
 
FROM: Allison De Busk, Project Planner 
 
SUBJECT: Entrada Project and Narrowing Lower State Street 

 
This memo provides background information that the Staff believes is appropriate for 
the City Council to have in connection with the request from Council members 
Francisco and Rowse to agendize a discussion of the public improvements required as 
part of the Entrada project approval. 
 
A. Entrada Project Time Line and City Approval History Concerning Project 
Related Street Improvements 
• May 22, 1998 – Project submitted for review. 

o July 1998 – Planning Commission Concept review 
o September 1998 – HLC Concept review 
o December 1998 – Planning Commission Scoping Hearing; at completion of hearing City 

Planning Commission directs staff to prepare a Mitigated Negative Declaration instead of 
a EIR focused on public view concerns as had been recommended by City Planning 
Staff.  

o February 4, 1999 – Planning Commission hearing on Draft Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (First Revision to Initial Study) 

o March 16, 1999 – Planning Commission/City Council/Redevelopment Agency Joint 
Workshop on Lower State Street Improvements, as related to Entrada de Santa Barbara 
project.  Council indicated support for the proposed public improvements. 

o March 23, 1999 – City Council public hearing on Lower State Street Improvements, as 
related to Entrada de Santa Barbara project. 
City Council also conceptually approves encroachment permit request for arcade entry 
feature in public right of way on Mason Street (Site A) 

o March 25, 1999 – Planning Commission public hearing on City discretionary land use 
permits for the Entrada project 

o April 8, 1999 – Continuation of Planning Commission public hearing on Project 
o April 14, 1999 – Planning Commission/Historic Landmarks Commission First Joint Work 

Session 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 



 2 

o April 22, 1999 – Planning Commission/ Historic Landmarks Commission Second Joint 
Work Session 

o May 27, 1999 – Planning Commission hearing on Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(Second Revision to Initial Study) 

o June 24, 1999 – Continued Planning Commission public hearing on discretionary 
permits needed for the Project 

• July 1, 1999 – Planning Commission approves Entrada MND and the permits necessary for 
the Project. 

• August 10, 1999 – City Council hearing on appeal of Planning Commission approval of 
Project. 

• August 17, 1999 – City Council denied appeal of Planning Commission’s approval 
• September 1999 – Appeal filed with California Coastal Commission.  Issues included 

protection of public views, traffic and congestion, and loss of lower cost visitor serving uses.  
Coastal Commission staff recommends Project approval with special CCC conditions of 
approval to address loss of lower cost visitor serving uses, maintenance of parking facilities 
and restrictions on changes of use. 
o November 4, 1999 – Coastal Commission hearing on determination of Substantial Issue 

relative to appeal of City approval of project by Environmental Defense Center and “Cars 
R Basic.”  

o January 13, 2000 – Coastal Commission hearing on appeal by Environmental Defense 
Center and Cars R Basic appeals.  

o April 12, 2000 – Coastal Commission hearing continued after Santa Barbara Superior 
Court ruling invalidates Entrada MND and orders the preparation of a focused EIR.  

• May 30, 2000 – Superior Court final judgment that focused EIR was required for views; 
previous City land-use approvals vacated. 

• Spring 2001 – local group calling itself “Streets R Us” begin circulating a proposed City 
initiative measure which would adopt a City ordinance banning any changes to the existing 
design of lower State Street, Cabrillo Boulevard, or Shoreline Drive without the approval of 
City voters.  

• May 8, 2001 – Joint Planning Commission/HLC Workshop on Redesigned Entrada Project 
• June 19, 2001 – Elizabeth Donati and “Streets R Us” file Superior Court declaratory relief 

action against the City seeking a judicial determination that the initiative measure they 
circulated for signatures in an effort to qualify for the November 2001 City election is a 
constitutionally appropriate initiative measure.  

• July 11, 2001 – Planning Commission certifies EIR focused on public view impacts and 
approved project. 

• August 21, 2001 – City Council denies appeal of Planning Commission’s Project approval 
through the adoption of comprehensive “Findings” Resolution - Santa Barbara City Council 
Resolution No. 01-103. 

• August 24, 2001 – Santa Barbara Superior Court Judge Anderle determines that the 
proposed “Streets R Us” initiative measure is preempted by the state Vehicle Code and, 
thus, constitutionally impermissible.  “Streets R Us” & Elizabeth Donati appeal this decision 
to the Second District Court of Appeal. 



 3 

• August 2001 – Second Appeal filed with Coastal Commission over the Entrada Project by 
group called “Streets R Us,” Citizen’s Planning Association, and League of Women Voters 
of Santa Barbara. 

• October 9, 2001 – Coastal Commission conducts “substantial issue” hearing; Commission 
finds “no substantial issue” with the appeal as recommended by CCC staff. Commission 
affirms Project Coastal Act approval with special conditions added by Commission as part of 
the 2000 appeal process.  

• December 11, 2001 – Coastal Commission issues a Final Decision stating “no substantial 
[Coastal Act] issue” with the second Entrada appeal. [The Coastal Commission specifically 
references that its decision requires the incorporation of the City public street improvement 
conditions, among other conditions of approval, as CDP permit conditions of approval and 
expressly provides that any modification or revisions to these Conditions of Approval will 
constitute a modification of the Entrada CDP and will thus require the issuance of a new 
Coastal Development Permit. ] 

• January 2002 - Santa Barbara Superior Court CEQA Litigation filed regarding the City’s 
environmental review of the Entrada Project; Judgment is ultimately issued in favor of the 
Applicant and the City that CEQA compliance was appropriate. (No appeal filed of this 
judgment.)  

• April 29, 2003 – Second District Court of Appeal affirms Judge Anderle’s decision that 
“Streets R Us” Initiative Measure is unconstitutional.  

• December 9, 2003 – City Council authorizes the City Administrator to execute and record (in 
the official records of Santa Barbara County) the City’s standard form “Agreement for Land 
Development Improvements” concerning the public improvements for State Street and 
Mason Street.  

• December 9, 2003 – City Council adopts City Ordinance No. 5299 approving the City’s 
standard form of “Agreement for Land Development Improvements” for the Entrada Project 
which has an Exhibit A consisting of the “C1” engineering plans showing improvements for 
all State Street and Mason Street Project street and sidewalk changes. 

• April 13, 2004 – City Council formally approves the Final Entrada Subdivision Maps and 
authorizes the City Public Works staff to execute the necessary and standard Development 
and Subdivision Map Agreements. 

• Early December 2005 – All Entrada/City Project Agreements fully executed by Applicant and 
City staff.  

• December 12, 2005 – Entrada “Escrow” Closes and a City Building Permit for Entrada Area 
C and all Public Street Improvements is issued. All recordable agreements are recorded in 
the official records of Santa Barbara County, Final Subdivision Maps recorded with County 
Surveyor’s office and all related agreements signed and delivered. City receives permit and 
mitigation fees in the amount of $1.434 million (not including School District fees and County 
property tax proration paid by Entrada owner) and City Public Works staff receives payment 
and performance bonds to secure completion of the required State and Mason Public 
Improvements in the amount of $5,497,500. 

• April 16, 2009 – Revised “Agreement to Construct and Install Land Development 
Improvements” is executed with MF (Mountain Funding) Santa Barbara – the successor-in-
interest to original Entrada Developer/Applicant is executed by City staff and recorded in 



 4 

official records of Santa Barbara County. Payment and Performance bonds are renewed 
and accepted by City for public improvements in accordance with new schedule attached to 
the City’s 2009 Substantial Conformance Determination.  

• March 2010 – new Substantial Conformance Determination issued by City to MF Santa 
Barbara which Determination revises schedule for street and sidewalk Public Improvements.  

• December 2010 – Amended Substantial Conformance Determination issued to 35 State 
Street Hotel Partners LLC (Michael Rosenfeld.) Schedule for Public Improvements revised.  

• March 4, 2013 - Amended “Agreement to Construct and Install Stage I Land Development 
Improvements” is executed by City staff and 35 State Street Hotel Partners LLC (the 
successor-in-interest to MF Santa Barbara) and recorded in official records of Santa Barbara 
County. Public Works and City Attorney Staff confirms that existing Developer Public 
Improvement Payment and Performance bonds issued in 2010 remain in place and secure 
the obligation to build the public improvements in accordance with the anticipated schedule 
for Phase II and Phase III Public Improvements to be determined by the City’s 2013 
Substantial Conformance Determination and to coincide with the construction of the Entrada 
Project. Phase 1 Public Improvements (west side of State and west block of Mason at State) 
begin in accordance with December 2010 SCD amendment.  
 

B.  Entrada Project – Required Public Street and Sidewalk Improvements 
The Entrada Project Description, as summarized in the July 11, 2001 Planning 
Commission staff report, includes the following description of the required Public 
Improvements: 

“At the request of the City and the Redevelopment Agency, the Entrada project 
proposes an agreement with the Agency for the rehabilitation of three block faces 
of State Street sidewalk frontage and for extensive streetscape improvements at 
the intersection of State Street and Mason Street, including along the first blocks 
of east and west Mason Street.  The Entrada Project is proposing a 
reconfiguration of existing on-street public parking on Mason Street and Helena 
Avenue, a widening of the State Street sidewalks so that they are at least 15 feet 
wide from curb to building line, a reduction in the number of vehicle traffic lanes 
on State Street, and a redesign of the look of the State Street/Mason Street 
intersection.  This reconfiguration of State Street (including the use of new 
sidewalk paving materials) would be consistent with the City’s existing State 
Street pedestrian “Plaza” as it presently exists in the City’s Central Business 
District along State Street from Gutierrez Street to Victoria Street.  All of these 
streetscape changes would involve design and landscape improvements such as 
paving the sidewalk with brick pavers, new landscaping, new street trees, new 
street furniture, and improvements for better disabled accessibility.  Similar 
streetscape improvements are also proposed for Mason Street and Helena 
Avenue. 
Staff supports the Entrada project with or without the proposed State Street 
narrowing. 
A new traffic signal is proposed at the intersection of State Street and Mason 
Street.  In addition, a signalized pedestrian crossing is proposed mid-block on 



 5 

State Street between the proposed Visitor Information Center and the new public 
parking lot at 125 State Street.” 

This is essentially the same public improvement description which was included with the 
project in 1999 when it was initially approved by the Planning Commission and City 
Council.  All of the public improvement plans for the improvements described above 
were issued Public Works permits by the City in December 2005 and those permits 
remain valid.  As indicated in the above timeline, a standard City Agreement for Land 
Development Improvements was executed and recorded, and improvement security 
bonds were provided to the City. 
As part of the Substantial Conformance Determination that was made in March 2010, 
the 35 State Street Hotel Partners was required to undertake those public 
improvements identified above (and outlined in the original project conditions of 
approval required by the Coastal Commission) within a certain time period.  The public 
improvements were originally divided into 3 phases for construction – somewhat to 
coincide with the three phase construction of the Entrada Project itself.  The first phase 
was the west side of State Street and W. Mason Street.  Updated improvement plans 
for just this phase were approved by the City in Fall 2012, and construction of the Phase 
1 improvements began in March 2013. 
 
C.  The Purpose of the Required Public Improvements.  
The sidewalk widening/road narrowing was intended to be consistent with the City’s 
longstanding State Street Plaza design north of Highway 101 to allow for the consistent 
development of this portion of State Street. 
Once the Cross-town Freeway was completed by CALTRANS in the early 1990’s, State 
Street was no longer a main arterial road to Highway 101.  The narrowing of State 
Street to two lanes below Highway 101 was designed and intended to restore a sense 
of place to the Waterfront Area.  At peak times of use, pedestrians outnumber cars on 
this portion of State Street.  The public improvements focus on increasing the capacity 
for pedestrians as well as enhancing the pedestrian environment. 
These public improvements were found to be consistent with the Local Coastal Plan, 
Circulation Element and Downtown Waterfront Visioning Report, which encourage 
pedestrian friendly amenities and decreased dependence on the automobile.  As 
mentioned above, these improvements are now also Project Conditions imposed by the 
state Coastal Commission in connection with the Coastal Commission’s Fall 2001 
decision to find that the appeal of the Entrada Project to the Commission presented “no 
substantial issue” with respect to its consistency and compliance with the State Coastal 
Act.  
 
D.  Entrada Project Traffic Analysis.  
As mentioned throughout the staff reports prepared by Community Development and 
Public Works Transportation staff for the project review history shown above, 
congestion at the signal at State Street and Cabrillo Boulevard is the primary limiting 
factor in the area.  Consequently, the proposed narrowing of State Street does not 
reduce the number of vehicle lanes at the intersection of State Street and Cabrillo 



 6 

Boulevard or otherwise negatively impact pedestrian access.  Currently State Street 
could deliver more cars to the State/Cabrillo intersection than that intersection can 
handle (the intersection can accommodate only 600-900 vehicles per hour but the 
existing two lanes of travel can send 2,800 vehicles per hour to the intersection.)  
Even after reducing the number of lanes on State Street at the mid-block points, at peak 
times State Street will still deliver more cars to the State and Cabrillo intersection (1,400 
vehicles per hour) than the intersection can handle due to the existing pedestrian 
activity.  In other words, since the limiting factor is the intersection of State and Cabrillo 
and the number of pedestrians and vehicles that use that intersection, the Entrada State 
Street Sidewalk improvements will not increase congestion and congestion levels (at 
peak times) will continue with or without State Street narrowing.  In addition, the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Entrada project noted that the Level of 
Service (LOS) of the State Street/Mason Street intersection would be reduced from LOS 
A to LOS B as a result of the narrowing of State Street.  This was identified as a less 
than significant impact.  Therefore, the City concluded that the result of the public 
improvements would be a betterment to the area in the form of an enhanced pedestrian 
experience without affecting congestion levels. 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.PDF
	8.DOCX
	9.DOCX
	10.DOCX
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.PDF
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.PDF
	23.DOC
	24.PDF
	25.DOC
	26.DOC
	27.DOC
	28.DOC
	29.DOC
	30.PDF
	31.PDF
	32.PDF
	33.PDF
	34.PDF
	35.DOC
	36.DOC
	37.DOC
	38.PDF
	39.DOC
	Mayor
	Bendy White
	APRIL 16, 2013
	AGENDA
	ORDER OF BUSINESS



